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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT of 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010
or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 001-33346

SUMMER INFANT, INC.

Delaware 20-199461¢
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation) Identification No.)
1275 Park East Drive, Woonsocket, Rhode Islar 02895
(Zip Code)

(Address of Principal Executive Office

(401) 671-6550
(Registrant's Telephone Number, Including Area Gode

Securities registered pursuant to Sect(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of Exchange on which registered

Common Stock, Par Value $.0( Nasdaq Capital Marke

Securities registered pursuant to SectR(qg) of the Act:None
Indicate by check mark if the registranaiwell-known seasoned issuer, as defined in lleof the Securities Act. YE&]

Indicate by check mark if the registranhot required to file reports pursuant to Seclidror Section 15(d) of the Act. YEH

NO

NO



Indicate by check mark whether the registr(1) has filed all reports required to be filgdSection 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 modh$or such shorter period that the registrans wejuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementstfe past 90 days. YE&I NO O

Indicate by check mark whether the regigthas submitted electronically and posted ocdtporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted untsto Rule 405 of Regulation 5¢8 232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@gnonth
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veggiired to submit and post such files). YEB NO O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofiniguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulat®#K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledgeleffinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part lll of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 104H.

Indicate by check mark whether the registis a large accelerated filer, an accelerated i non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of "accelerated filarge accelerated filer" and "smaller reportimgnpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated file&l Accelerated filerO Non-accelerated fileid Smaller reporting companixl
(Do not check if a
smaller reporting compan

Indicate by check mark whether registiara shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 ofikehange Act). YE] NO

The aggregate market value of the votimdy on-voting common equity held by non-affiliatbased on the closing price of the
registrant's Common Stock as reported on the Na€dadgal Market on June 30, 2010 of $6.55, was @pprately $58,644,547. For purposes
of this computation, all officers, directors, ar@dbeneficial owners of the registrant are deemecktaffiliates. Such determination should
be deemed to be an admission that such officerectdrs, or 10% beneficial owners are, in faciiafés of the registrant.

The number of shares outstanding of thesteant's common stock as of March 1, 2011 waS2(477 (excluding unvested restricted
shares that have been issued to employees).
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This annual report on Form 10-K containsaddition to historical information, forward-loakj statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199%€Be forwardeoking statements are based on management's teseectations and inclu
statements regarding our "expectations," "antigypgt "intentions," "beliefs," or "strategies" reging the future, whether or not those words
are used. These statements include statementslimgar ability to grow strategically, our positicn the markets in which we compete, to
increase product penetration, create new prodaoctsmeet our growth strategy, our ability to depglooprietary products, to grow sales in the
future, and to make and successfully integrateiaitijuns, and our expectations regarding liquidityd capital resources in the future. Forward-
looking statements are subject to a number of fa@nod uncertainties, which could cause actualteesudiffer materially from those descrik
in such statements. We caution investors that betgalts or business conditions may differ matirifiom those projected or suggested in
forward-looking statements as a result of vari@eidrs including, but not limited to, the risk fawt discussed in Item 1A. Risk Factors below.
All forward-looking statements included in this ogpare based on information available to us abefiling date of this report, and we assume
no obligation to update any such forward-lookirgtements.

PART |
Iltem 1. Business
Background

On March 6, 2007, under an Agreement aad$?bf Reorganization, dated as of September B, 20BL Healthcare Acquisition Corp. Il
("KBL"), and its wholly owned subsidiary, SII Acegifion Corp. ("Acquisition Sub"), consummated angaction by which (i) Summer
Infant, Inc. ("SII") was merged with and into Acgition Sub and (ii) all of the outstanding capgiedck of each of Summer Infant Europe,
Limited and Summer Infant Asia, Ltd. was acquiréectly by KBL. Effective upon closing, KBL changéd name to Summer Infant, Inc. and
Sll changed its name to Summer Infant (USA), Inc.Narch 7, 2007, the securities of Summer Infamt, tommenced listing on the Nasdaq
Capital Market under the symbols SUMR (common sfo8KMRW (warrants) and SUMRU (units). On NovemBe2008, Summer Infant
(USA), Inc. created a whollgwned subsidiary called Summer Infant Canada, &tsmmer Infant, Inc, ("we," "us", or the "Companighow a
holding company. operating through its wholly-owrsedbsidiaries, Summer Infant (USA), Inc., Summéarnih Europe, Limited ("SIE"),
Summer Infant Canada, Ltd. ("SIC") and Summer Infssia, Ltd. ("SIA"). The consolidated financiabhtments of the Company included in
this Annual Report include the accounts of its Wrolvned subsidiaries.

General

We are a designer, marketer, and distriboftbranded juvenile health, safety and wellnasslpcts (for ages 0-3 years) which are sold
principally to large North American and United Kawn retailers. We currently market products in @asi product categories including nurs
audio/video monitors, safety gates, durable babdyets, bed rails, nursery products, booster atiy peats, bouncers, travel accessories, high
chairs, swings and nursery furniture. In the pastyears, the Company has completed several atiqgnsiand therefore added items such as
cribs and baby gear. In North America our prodacessold primarily to retailers including BabiedJB, Target, KMart, Wal-Mart, Buy Buy
Baby and Amazon.com.

Our corporate headquarters is located isWdocket, Rhode Island. We maintain a sales, magkand distribution office in England,
which services the United Kingdom and other pafiSwope. SIE's largest customers are Mothercargs R Us, Argos, and Tesco. We
maintain through SIA a product development, saagjneering and quality assurance office.
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Strategy

Our strategy is to grow our sales througiagety of methods, including:

. increased product penetration (more products dt siace);

. increased store penetration (more stores withih eatail customer)

. new products (at existing and new custome

. new mass merchant retail customers;

. new distribution channels (food and drug chaingepclubs, home centers, web-based retailers);
. new geographies (international expansit

. new product categories; and

. acquisitions.

We have been able to grow our annual resghistorically through a combination of all of gigove factors. Each year, we have been
to expand the number of products in our main digtidon channel and number of mass merchant redaéerd have also added new customers
each year. Therefore, even with limited new prodiitbductions, we could grow our business by singalling more of our existing product
line to existing customers.

In the future, our growth strategy will teecontinue to develop and sell new products toexisting customer base, sell new and existing
products to new customers (or expand relationshiffsexisting customers) and to expand in the WhKéngdom and in other geographic
regions (including Japan, Mexico and Australia, agnothers). In addition, there are a number of @kacquisition candidates that could be
pursued to obtain new innovative products, new pcbdategories, new retail customers or new salegdries. There are several hundred
active juvenile product companies, of which weraate the majority have less than $10,000 in siatesddition, there are various product
categories that we do not currently compete inuidiclg feeding, walkers, and car seats. We may foaevelop our own products in these
categories or attempt to gain entrance into thasegories through acquisitions.

Products

We currently sell products in a number iffedent categories, including nursery audio/videonitors, safety gates, durable bath products,
bed rails, infant thermometers, related healthsafdty products, booster and potty seats, critisy baar, bouncers and swaddling blankets.
Most of the products are sold under the Summentrifeand name. The Company also has several ling@srangements to sell products ur
different brands. No single product generated nitwaie 10% of sales for the year ended December@®1).2ZT'he majority of our products are
sold under the Summer brand with certain produdlts snder Carters and Disney brands.

Product Development and Design

Our management believes that product dewedmt is a critical element of our strategy anctess to date. Our product strategy is to
produce proprietary products that provide distiretienefits, are visually appealing, provide commece and will appeal to the mid-tier and
upper-tier buyers. Our retail customers are stieddlyg motivated to buy innovative products. Ourimproduct development efforts are located
at our Rhode Island corporate office, but we aeehdevelopment efforts in China, Pennsylvania,teadJnited Kingdom.
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Suppliers and Manufacturing

Except for certain injection-molded batbgupotty seats and booster seats, which are nauotdd in the U.S., substantially all of our
other products are manufactured in Asia (partityi@hina). We use many different suppliers and w& our molds. Therefore, we are not
dependent on any one manufacturer. SIA providesithsa local sourcing presence and the abilitywersee quality, electronic engineering
other issues that may arise during production. @lyewe are buying finished goods from manufaetarand thus are not directly procuring
any raw materials related to the ultimate manufaguof the products. We have not had any significiisruption of supply to date as a result
of raw material shortages, but there is the paddsilthat shortages could occur in the future based variety of factors beyond our control.

Transportation of Asia-made goods to oureliauses typically takes three to four weeks, déipgnon the location of the warehouse. We
maintain our inventory at warehouses located inthiéed States, Canada, Asia, and the United Kingddost of our customers pick up their
goods at regional warehouses. We also use UPSthedammmon carriers to arrange shipments to cust®mho request such arrangements,
primarily smaller retailers and specialty stores2011, the East Coast distribution center wiltbasolidated into the west coast distribution
center. We anticipate this will better enable usdrvice our customer as well as result in increal@ost savings operationally and through
reduced distribution channel costs.

We use several manufacturers in the UiSodio injection molded products that account fameen 10% and 15% of our annual sales.
Sales and Marketing

Our sales are primarily derived from thie s juvenile health, safety and wellness prodacts are recognized upon transfer of title of
product to our customers. Our products are markateldsold through several distribution channelfuitiag chain retailers, specialty retailers
and direct to consumers.

Sales are made utilizing standard credib$eof 30 to 60 days. We generally accept retuntg for defective merchandise.
Competition

The juvenile health, safety and wellneshisiry has many participants, none of which hawaidant market share, though certain
companies have disproportionate strength in cesagments. Our largest direct competitors are Dodrlistries (including Safety 1st and
Cosco brands), Evenflo (Evenflo, Gerry, and Snigdnds), Kid Brands, Inc., FishBrice (part of Mattel, Inc.), The First Years (dsidiary o
RC2 Corporation) and Graco (a subsidiary of Ne®Relbbermaid). In addition, we compete in certaioaf product lines with a number of
private companies, such as KidCo, Inc. and Munchkin

The primary methods of competition in thdustry consist of product innovation, brand posiig, quality, price and other factors suc
timely distribution. Our competitive strengths indé our experienced product development staffability to develop new products, brand
positioning, relationships with major retailersdahe quality and pricing of our products.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patents, li@nand trade secrets to protect our intellectuggnty. Our patents currently in effect include
various design features related to bedrails, indaats, bouncers, and potty chairs, with seveharqiatents pending for monitors, baby swings,
and other
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items. The patents expire at various times oventh 20 years. We also have license agreemeatingto the use of patented technology
owned by third parties in certain of our products.

Customers

Our top 7 customers together comprised @%@t of our sales in fiscal 2010. Some of theséotners include Babies R Us/Toys R Us
(approximately 51%), Target, K-Mart, Buy Buy Bal®ymazon.com and Wal-Mart.

Seasonality

There are not significant variations ins®el demand for our products. Sales to our ret@fomers are generally higher in the time fri
when retailers take initial shipments of new praduhese orders usually incorporate enough pradudt each store plus additional amounts
to be kept at the customer's distribution centhe fiming of these initial shipments varies by onstr depending on when they finalize store
layouts for the upcoming year, and whether theeeaay mid-year product introductions.

Geographic Regions

In 2010, North America accounted for ov@#®of our total net sales; the remaining sales weade in the United Kingdom and all other
geographies.

Regulatory Matters

We obtain all necessary regulatory agemgravals for each of our products. In the U.S.s¢happrovals may include, among others, one
or more of the Consumer Product Safety CommissiGR$EC"), the American Society of Test Methods ("A87, the Juvenile Products
Manufacturing Association ("JPMA"), the Federal Gommications Commission (“FCC") and the Food andgDkdministration ("FDA"). We
conduct our own internal testing, which utilize§¥@eseeable use and abuse" testing method aresigred to subject each product to the
"worst case scenario." Our products are also fretijigested by independent government certified.lab

Insurance

We carry a product liability insurance pglihat provides us with $10,000 of liability comge with a minimal deductible. We consult v
our insurers to ascertain appropriate liability @@age for our product mix. We anticipate increasinginsurance coverage in the future in line
with our expanding sales and product breadth.

Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we employed d tfta18 full time people, 152 of whom work in theadquarters and distribution centers in
Rhode Island. Our employees are not covered bylective bargaining agreement. We consider our eyg® relations to be good.

Available Information

We maintain our corporate websitevatw.summerinfant.coend we make available, free of charge, throughwieissite our annual repi
on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, carreports on Form 8-K, and amendments to thosertethat we file with or furnish to the
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), as ssarasonably practicable after we electroniddéythat material with, or furnish it to,
the SEC. Our website also includes corporate gevexainformation, including our Code of Ethics @ Board Committee Charters.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

If any of the events or circumstances dbedrin the following risks actually occur, our iness, financial condition or results of
operations could be materially adversely affechedhose cases, the trading price of our commockstould decline.

The concentration of our business with a base of retail customers that make no binding long-term commitments means that economic
difficulties or changesin the purchasing policies of our major customers could have a significant impact on our business.

A number of large, retail customers accdant majority of our sales. In fiscal 2010, Td¥$Js generated 51% of our total sales. Because
of the concentration of our business with this costr and because we have no long term contradtsthv#t customer, our success depends on
our customers' willingness to continue to purchas®provide shelf space for our products. An advelgnge in our relationship with any of
our large customers or a change in the financability of any of these customers could adverséfigcaour results of operations and financial
condition.

Our ability to grow and compete will be harmed if we do not successfully satisfy consumer preferences, enhance existing products, develop
and introduce new products, and achieve market acceptance of those products.

Our business and operating results depamgelly upon the appeal of our products. Consunefepnces, particularly among parents,
whom are often the end purchasers of our prodantsconstantly changing. Our success will largelyeshd on our ability to identify emerging
trends in the health, safety and wellness markegpland design products that address consumer desnanprove safe and cost effective. Our
product offerings compete with those of many ottenpanies, many of which are much larger and elmjogider brand recognition and
significant distribution channel relationships, alhimeans that our market position is always at sk ability to maintain and increase our
current market share will depend upon our abilitamticipate changes in consumer preferences disfiyshese preferences, enhance existing
products, develop and introduce new products atabksh and grow distribution channels for thesadpicts, and ultimately achieve market
acceptance of these products.

We are dependent on key personnel, and our ability to grow and compete in our industry will be harmed if we do not retain the continued
services of our key personnel, or we fail to identify, hire, and retain additional qualified personnel.

We are dependent on the efforts of our gameent team, and the loss of services of membeygrahanagement team, each of whom has
substantial experience in the juvenile health,tgadad wellness markets, could have an adverseteaffeour business. If any members of
management leave, their departure could have agrseleffect on our operations and could adverggdgteour ability to design new products
and to maintain and grow the distribution chanf@®ur products.

In addition, if our operations continuegimw in a manner consistent with our historicalvgtorates, it will be necessary for us to attract
and retain additional qualified personnel. The reaifkr qualified and talented product developmesrspnnel in the consumer goods market,
and the juvenile health, safety and wellness prizdonarket specifically is intensely competitivewié are unable to attract or retain qualified
personnel as needed, the growth of our operatioulsl be slowed or hampered. However, we believedhacompensation including salary,
performance-based bonuses, and stock award prograwvisles incentives that are competitive withim maustry.
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I ntellectual property claimsrelating to our products could increase our costs and adversely affect our business.

We have, from time to time, received clamhslleged infringement of patents relating totaier of our products, and we may face similar
claims in the future. These claims relate to allegatent infringement and are primarily the resfitiewly issued patents that were not in force
when we initially brought the subject products tarket. The defense of intellectual property clagas be costly and time consuming, even in
circumstances where the claim is without merit. WM&y be required to pay substantial damages oeswitit costs in order to resolve these
types of claims. In addition, these claims couldarially harm our brand name, reputation and ojerat

Werely on foreign suppliersin Asia to manufacture the majority of our products, and any adverse change in our relationship with our
suppliers could harm our business.

We rely on numerous third-party suppliersated in Asia for the manufacture of most of awdpicts. While we believe that alternative
suppliers could be located if required, our prodigatrcing could be affected if any of these supplé® not continue to manufacture our
products in required quantities or at all, or vitie required levels of quality. We enter into pa®h orders with our foreign suppliers and dc
enter into any long term contracts. In additioffficlilties encountered by these suppliers, suclirasaccident, natural disasters, outbreaks of
contagious diseases, or political unrest, coultdradlisrupt production at the affected locatiamesulting in delay or cancellation of orders. /
of these events could result in delayed deliveniess of our products, causing reduced sales amd twaour reputation and brand name.

Increasesin the cost of materials or labor used to manufacture our products could decrease our profitability and therefore negatively impact
our business and financial condition.

Because our products are manufacturedity-plarty suppliers, we do not directly purchase tiaterials used in the manufacture of our
products. However, the prices paid by us to thepelgers could increase if raw materials, laborothrer costs increase. If we cannot pass these
increases along to our customers, our profitability be adversely affected.

Because we rely on foreign suppliers and we sell in foreign markets, we are subject to numerous risks associated with international business
that could increase our costs or disrupt the supply of our products, resulting in a negative impact on our business and financial condition.

Our international operations subject usgks, including:

. economic and political instability,

. restrictive actions by foreign governmer

. greater difficulty enforcing intellectual propenights and weaker laws protecting intellectual gy rights,

. changes in import duties or import or export resitns,

. timely shipping of product and unloading of prodtiebugh West Coast ports, as well as timely trdekvery to out
warehouses,

. complications in complying with the laws and patgiof the United States affecting the importatibgands, including duties,

guotas, and taxes, and

. complications in complying with trade and foreigex taws.
Any of these events or circumstances cdiddupt the supply of our products or increaseexrenses.
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Product liability, product recalls, and other claims relating to the use of our products could increase our costs.

Because we sell infant and juvenile heal#tfiety and wellness products to consumers, wepiamuct liability risks relating to the use of
our products. We also must comply with a varietpafduct safety and product testing regulationgqdrticular, our products are subject to,
among other statutes and regulations, the ConsBroeluct Safety Act, the Federal Hazardous Subssafice("FHSA™) and the Consumer
Product Safety Improvement Act ("CPSIA"), which esmer the Consumer Product Safety Commission (tHRSC'), to take action against
hazards presented by consumer products. With exgiaagthority under the CPSIA, the CPSC has andragd to adopt new regulations for
safety and products testing that apply to our petslurhese new regulations have or likely will $iigantly increase the regulatory
requirements governing the manufacture and satitifren’s products and increase the potentiallieador noncompliance with applicable
regulations. The CPSC has the authority to excfrata the market and recall certain consumer pratizt are found to be potentially
hazardous. Consumer product safety laws also iexégime states and cities within the United Statesin Canada and Europe, as well as
certain other countries. While we take the stepbeleve are necessary to comply with these lawlsragulations, there can be no assurance
that we will be in compliance in the future. If fiaél to comply with these laws and regulationsifave face product liability claims, we may
subject to damage awards or settlement costs xbaed any available insurance coverage and we meay significant costs in complying wi
recall requirements. Furthermore, concerns abaignpial liability may lead us to recall voluntar#glected products. For instance, we recently
undertook voluntary action to re-label our audidéo nursery monitors. The financial impact of théuntary program is not expected to be
material. In addition, the CPSC issued a warniygréing sleep positioners during 2010 which reslltethe return of product by retail
customers; the Company incurred a charge of $7afekto this issue. Complying with existing or auch additional regulations or
requirements could impose increased costs on ainéss. Similarly, increased penalties for non-danpe could subject us to greater
expense in the event any of our products were faombt comply with such regulations.

Competition in our markets could reduce our net sales and profitability.

We operate in highly competitive markete ¥dmpete with several large domestic and fore@npanies and with other producers of
infant products. Many of our competitors have langgerating histories, greater brand recognitiowl greater financial, technical, marketing
and other resources than we have. In addition, e face competition from new participants in ourkess because the infant and juvenile
product industry has limited barriers to entry. ¥perience price competition for our products, cetitipn for shelf space at retailers and
competition for licenses, all of which may increas¢he future. If we cannot compete successfullthe future, our net sales and profitability
will likely decline.

We may experience difficulties in identifying suitable acquisition targets and integrating strategic acquisitions.

As part of our growth strategy, we have msatlategic acquisitions and intend to continuguisue acquisitions that are consistent witt
mission and enable us to leverage our competithemgths. While we continue to evaluate potentigjugsitions, we may not be able to iden
and successfully negotiate suitable acquisitioh&io financing for future acquisitions on satiséag terms, obtain regulatory approval for
certain acquisitions or otherwise complete acqoisstin the future. An inability to identify futumecquisitions could limit our future growth.

In addition, the integration of operatiaighose companies we do acquire into our operstiovolves a number of risks, including:

. the acquired business may experience losses thlt adversely affect our profitability;

. unanticipated costs relating to the integratioaafuired businesses may increase our expe

7
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. possible failure to obtain any necessary consertfsettransfer of licenses or other agreementsen&tquired business;

. possible failure to maintain customer, licensor atieer relationships after the closing of the teantion of the acquired busine
. difficulties in achieving planned cost-savings aydergies may increase our expenses or decreasetsales;

. diversion of management's attention could impagirthbility to effectively manage our business agiens; and

. unanticipated management or operational problenfialmilities may adversely affect our profitabilignd financial conditior

In addition, any future acquisitions or@stments may result in:

. issuances of dilutive equity securities, which rbaysold at a discount to market price;

. impairment of goodwill;

. use of significant amounts of ca:

. the incurrence of deb

. the assumption of significant liabilities;

. unfavorable financing terms;

. large on-time expenses; ar

. the creation of intangible assets, including godidtfie write-down of which may result in significant charges&rnings

A material impairment in the carrying value of acquired goodwill or other intangible assets could negatively affect our consolidated
operating results and net worth.

A portion of our assets is goodwill andestintangible assets, which are reviewed on anarasis and whenever events and changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amoumincdsset may not be recoverable. If the carryihgevaf these assets exceeds the current fair
value, the asset is considered impaired and iscestto fair value, resulting in a non-cash chaeogearnings during the period in which any
impairment is determined. Events and conditions ¢bald result in impairment include a sustainegpdn the market price of our common
stock, increased competition or loss of marketesharoduct innovation or obsolescence, or a dedirair business related to acquired
companies. We cannot accurately predict the amanohtiming of any impairment of assets.

Our debt covenants may limit our ability to complete acquisitions, incur debt, make investments, sell assets, merge or complete other
significant transactions.

Our loan agreements include provisions pifeate limitations on a number of our activitigg;luding our ability to:

. incur additional debf
. create liens on our assets or make guarar
. make certain investments or loans;

. pay dividends; o
. dispose of or sell assets or enter into a mergsinaifar transactior
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Our credit agreement also contains a number ohiirzh covenants. The restrictive covenants in oedit agreement may limit our ability to
engage in acts that may be in our best long-tetergsts. A breach of any of the restrictive covénamour credit agreement could result in a
default under our credit agreement. If a defautiuos, the lenders under our credit agreement nexy & declare all outstanding borrowings,
together with accrued interest, to be immediately dnd payable, to terminate any commitments theg ko provide further borrowers, and to
exercise any other rights they have under the taggleement or applicable law.

We could issue additional common stock, which might dilute the book value of our common stock.

Our board of directors has authority, withaction or vote of our stockholders in most catesssue all or a part of our authorized but
unissued shares. These stock issuances could eeahadrice that reflects a discount from the ttwment trading price of our common stock.
In addition, to raise capital, we may need to isseurities that are convertible into or exchanfgetdy a significant amount of our common
stock. These issuances would dilute current shidets) ownership percentage which would have tfecebf reducing their influence on
matters on which stockholders vote, and could dithe book value of Summer Infant common stockci8tolders may incur additional
dilution if holders of stock options, whether cuntlg outstanding or subsequently granted, exettisi options, or if warrant holders exercise
their warrants to purchase shares of Summer Ifamimon stock.

Asa"thinly-traded" stock, large sales can place downward pressure on our stock price.

Our common stock experiences periods wheould be considered "thinly traded." Finance $eantions resulting in a large amount of
newly issued shares that become readily tradablaeher events that cause current stockholdersltaisares, could place downward pressure
on the trading price of our stock. In addition, thek of a robust resale market may require a $tolcler to sell a large number of shares in
increments over time to mitigate any adverse impétie sales on the market price of our stock.

Anti-takeover provisionsin our organizational documents and Delaware law may limit the ability of our stockholdersto control our policies
and effect a change of control of our company and may prevent attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management,
which may not bein your best interests.

There are provisions in our certificatéraforporation and bylaws that may discourage altparty from making a proposal to acquire us,
even if some of our stockholders might considemttuposal to be in their best interests, and mayemt attempts by our stockholders to
replace or remove our current management. Thesgsfos include the following:

. our certificate of incorporation provides for thidasses of directors with the term of office obartass expiring each year,
commonly referred to as a staggered board. By ptawgstockholders from voting on the election afrmthan one class of
directors at any annual meeting of stockholdeiis,gtovision may have the effect of keeping the@urmembers of our board
of directors in control for a longer period of titten stockholders may desire;

. our certificate of incorporation authorizes our fabaf directors to issue shares of preferred stuithout stockholder approv.
and to establish the preferences and rights ofpagferred stock issued, which would allow the bdarssue one or more clas
or series of preferred stock that could discouragdelay a tender offer or change in control; and

. our bylaws require advance written notice of stattbr proposals and director nominatic

Additionally, we are subject to Section 203he Delaware General Corporation Law, whichgémeral, imposes restrictions upon
acquirers of 15% or more of our stock. Finally, biward of
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directors may in the future adopt other protecthaasures, such as a stockholder rights plan, vduahd delay, deter or prevent a change of
control.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

We are headquartered in a 52,000 squailéyfac Woonsocket, Rhode Island. We have a seyear lease on this facility, with an option
to extend for an additional five years. We alsaéesmall offices in Pennsylvania, Arkansas, Canddaand Hong Kong.

We maintain inventory at leased warehous&salifornia (approximately 442,000 square feRf)pde Island (approximately 104,000
square feet), Canada (approximately 31,000 sqeaty Hong Kong (third party warehouse) and the(djgproximately 16,000 square feet).
These leases expire at various times between 204 2Gi 6.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may be subject talggoceedings and claims in the ordinary courdausfness. We are not aware of any such
proceedings or claims that we believe will havejiidually or in the aggregate, a material adveffect on our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

ltem 4. [Removed and Reserved.]
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities
Price Range of Common Stc

On March 7, 2007, our common stock, wagamd units commenced listing on the Nasdaq Cadaaket under the symbols "SUMR",
"SUMRW" and "SUMRU", respectively.

On March 17, 2008, we announced that effedflarch 28, 2008, the units will be separated itd component securities, consisting of
share of common stock and two warrants. As a rdsedfinning in March 2008, the units ceased tradiig warrants expired on April 20, 2(
and ceased trading in April 2009.

The high and low closing prices for our enam stock as reported on the Nasdaq Capital Méokehe periods indicated below were as
follows:

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 20C

First Quarte! $ 23€¢ $ 1.1¢
Second Quarte $ 282 $ 1.5¢
Third Quartel $ 5.0C $ 2.01
Fourth Quarte $ 528 $ 4.14
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 201

First Quartel $ 6.6¢ $ 4.64
Second Quarte $ 82t $ 6.47
Third Quartel $ 851 $ 6.4¢
Fourth Quarte $ 8.1t $ 6.5¢

Holders of Common Stor

As of March 1, 2011, there were approxinyad stockholders of record of our common stockc®use shares of our common stock are
held by depositaries, brokers and other nominéesatimber of beneficial holders of our shares listantially larger than the number of record
holders.

Dividend Policy

There have been no cash dividends dectarerir common stock since our company was form@ddénds are declared at the sole
discretion of our Board of Directors. Our intentismot to declare cash dividends and retain ahdar our operations and future acquisitions.

Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securi
None.

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities
None.

Iltem 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data
N/A

11
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations (dodr amounts in thousands, except
share and per share data)

The information contained in this secti@s tbeen derived from our consolidated financidkestents and should be read together with our
consolidated financial statements and related rintbdgded elsewhere in this filing.

The following discussion is intended toisisis the assessment of significant changes amdisr related to our results of operations and
financial condition. This discussion and analy$isidd be read in conjunction with our consoliddiedncial statements and notes thereto
included herein.

Company Overview

We are a designer, marketer, and distritoftbranded juvenile health, safety and wellnesslpcts which are sold principally to large
North American and United Kingdom retailers. Werently market proprietary products in various prodeategories including nurse
audio/video monitors, safety gates, durable babdyets, bed rails, infant thermometers, relatedthh@ad safety products, booster and potty
seats, cribs, baby gear, bouncers and swaddlimyétis.

Our business has grown organically in fhar markets. We derive our revenues from the saleealth, safety and wellness products for
infants and toddlers. Our revenue is driven byahility to design and market desirable productsnidy business opportunities and secure
and renew existing distribution channels. Our inednem operations is derived from our ability tongeate revenue and collect cash in excess
of labor and other costs of providing our prodwrid selling, general and administrative costs.

Our strategy is to grow our sales througiagety of methods, including:

. increased product penetration (more products dt siace);

. increased store penetration (more stores withih eatail customer);

. new products (at existing and new custome

. new mass merchant retail customu

. new distribution channels (food and drug chaingepclubs, home centers, web-based retailers);
. new geographies (international expansion);

. new product categories; a

. acquisitions

We have been able to grow our annual rexghistorically through a combination of all of tigove factors. Each year, we have been
to expand the number of products in our main digtidon channel and number of mass merchant redaéerd have also added new customers
each year. Therefore, even with limited new prodiitbductions, we could grow our business by singalling more of our existing product
line to existing customers.

In the future, our growth strategy will teecontinue to develop and sell new products toexisting customer base, sell new and existing
products to new customers (or expand relationshiffsexisting customers) and expand in the Unitéagdlom and in other geographic regions
(including Japan, Mexico and Australia, among athen addition, there are a number of potentiglgsition candidates that could be pursued
to obtain new innovative products, new productgaties, new retail customers or new sales terégorThere are several hundred active
juvenile product companies, of which we estimaterttajority have less than $10 million in salesadidlition, there are various prod
categories that we do not currently compete inuttiag feeding and walkers. We may look to
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develop our own products in these categories engit to gain entrance into these categories thragghisitions.

As we continue to grow through internatiatives and any future acquisitions, we will inadditional expenses. Two of the key areas in
which those increased expenses will likely occersales and product development. To grow salesyillvikely hire additional sales persont
to service new geographic territories, focus exgstiesources on specific parts of the United Staitedket and retain product line specialists to
drive sales of new and existing products in speeifeas in which we believe we can readily increades. Product development expenses will
increase as we develop new products in existingnemdcategories.

If we were to acquire one or more compaagpart of our growth strategy, we would faceaasichallenges such as the integration of the
acquired companies' product lines, employees, miagkeequirements and information systems. Ongaifigstructure investment also may be
required to support realized growth, including exgiires with respect to upgraded and expandednrdton systems and enhancing our
management team.

Sales

Our revenues are primarily derived from shée of juvenile health, safety and wellness petgland are recognized upon transfer of titl
product to our customers. Our products are markéredigh several distribution channels includingiotretailers, specialty retailers and on-
line retailers.

A number of large, retail customers accdant majority of our sales. One customer gendratere than 10% of sales for the year ended
December 31, 2010 Toys R Us (51% of sales). Beaafude concentration of our business with thisaoeer and because we have no long
term contracts with this customer, our successtEpen our customers' willingness to purchase amdge shelf space for our products.

Over 90% of sales are currently made teorasrs in North America, with the remaining salemprily made to customers in the United
Kingdom. Sales are made utilizing standard credihs of 30 to 60 days. We generally accept retanhsfor defective merchandise.

Cost of goods sold and other expenses

Our products are manufactured by thirdipsriwith approximately 90% of the dollar valugpobducts being manufactured in Asia and
majority of the balance being manufactured in th8.WCost of goods sold primarily represents purebad finished products from these third
party manufacturers. The remainder of our costoafdg sold includes duties on certain imported itéfregght-in from suppliers and
miscellaneous charges from contract manufactugersstantially all of our purchases are made in blcs; therefore, most of this activity is
not subject to currency fluctuations. If our supiexperience increased raw materials, laborh@raosts and pass along those cost increases
through higher prices for finished goods, our ajstales would increase, and to the extent we raabla to pass these price increases along to
our customers, our gross margins would decrease.

Selling, general and administrative expsrs@narily consist of payroll, insurance, professil fees, royalties, freight out to customers,
product development costs, advertising and marfgetipenses (including co-op advertising allowaraesegotiated with certain customers)
and sales commissions. Several of these itemaifitetvith sales; some of these variable costsagedon sales to particular customers and
others are based on sales of particular products.

There are no significant variations in seas demand for our products. Sales to our retstamers are generally higher in the time frame
when retailers take initial shipments of new prdduc

13




Table of Contents

These orders usually incorporate enougdyiroto fill each store plus additional amountbeokept at the customer's distribution center.
The timing of these initial shipments varies bytooser depending on when they finalize store layfatshe upcoming year, and whether there
are any mid-year product introductions.

Summary of critical accounting policies and estimats

This summary of our critical accountingipis is presented to assist in understanding onsalidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements and notes areseptations of our management, which is respan$ibltheir integrity and objectivity. The
accounting policies conform to accounting principdeenerally accepted in the United States of Amaaaitd have been consistently applied in
the preparation of the consolidated financial stegets.

We make certain estimates and assumpti@isffect the reported amounts of assets anditiabiand the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses. The accounting policies describeherle those we consider critical in preparingftnancial statements. Some of these
policies include significant estimates made by nganaent using information available at the timedgbmates were made. However, these
estimates could change materially if different mfi@tion or assumptions were used.

Revenue recognitic

We record revenue when all of the followaagur: persuasive evidence of an arrangementsexisiduct delivery has occurred, the sales
price to the customer is fixed or determinable amitectability is reasonably assured. Sales arerdsxl net of provisions for returns and
allowances, cash discounts and markdowns. We hasestimates for discounts, returns and allowapnocesegotiated customer terms,
historical experience. These estimates are sutgjectriability, as actual deductions taken by costs may be different from the estimates
recorded.

Sales incentives or other consideratiorgily us to customers that are considered adjustroéthe selling price of its products, such as
markdowns, are reflected as reductions of reveBakes incentives and other consideration that sepitecosts incurred by us for assets or
services received, such as the appearance of odugts in a customer's national circular ad, aftected as selling and marketing expenses in
the accompanying statements of income.

Trade receivables

We carry our trade receivables at netzable value. On a periodic basis, we evaluateradetreceivables and establish an allowance for
doubtful accounts based on a history of past bad dellections and current credit conditions. Hflewance is adjusted based on actual write-
offs that occur.

We do not accrue interest on trade recédgatd\ receivable is considered past due if paymbate not been received within the credit
terms on the account, typically 60 days for mostamers.

We will turn an account over for collectiaround 120 days past due. Accounts are considereallectible if no payments are received
to 90 days after they have been turned over fdectnbn.

Inventory Valuatior

Inventory is comprised of finished goods &nstated at the lower of cost, inclusive ofgrgiand duty, or market (net realizable value)
using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Our mghousing costs are charged to expense as inclmkehtory write-downs are recorded for
damaged, obsolete or slow-moving inventory. Manag@mses estimates to record write-downs baset$ eeview of inventory by product
category, including length of time on hand andmeates of future orders for each
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product. Changes in consumer preferences, as svdkimand for products, customer buying patternsrarghtory management could impact
the inventory valuation.

Impairment of lon-lived assets, goodwill and other intangible assets

Long-lived assets have been reviewed f@aimment based on accounting guidance which regjtira an impairment loss be recognized
whenever the carrying value of an asset exceedsutineof the undiscounted cash flows expected wtr'sm the use and eventful disposition
of that asset, excluding future interest costsetitédy would recognize as an expense when incu@eddwill and other intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives are not amortized, fagher tested at least annually for impairment. @anagement reviews for indicators that
might suggest an impairment loss could exist. Tigsdr impairment requires estimates of expecteth gmws to be generated from the use of
the assets. Various uncertainties, including chamgeonsumer preference, deterioration in thetipalienvironment, continued adverse
conditions in the capital markets or changes iregareconomic conditions, could impact the expectezh flows to be generated by an asset or
group of assets. Intangible assets that have firsigdul lives are amortized over their useful lives

Allowance for doubtful account

The allowance for doubtful accounts repnésadjustments to customer trade accounts redeif@bamounts deemed uncollectible. The
allowance for doubtful accounts reduces gross tradeivables to their estimated net realizableevaline allowance is based on our assess
of the business environment, customers' finandatition, historical trends, customer payment peast receivable aging and customer
disputes. We will continue to proactively review auedit risks and adjust customer terms to reflleetcurrent environment.

Income taxe

Income taxes are computed using the assdliability method of accounting. Under the asaed liability method, a deferred tax asset or
liability is recognized for estimated future tafeets attributable to temporary differences andyéarwards. The measurement of deferred
income tax assets is adjusted by a valuation alo@aif necessary, to recognize future tax benefitg to the extent, based on available
evidence, it is more likely than not that such Higmevill be realized.

Previously, the Company adopted the prowisiof a new standard which provides detailed gugddor the financial statement
recognition, measurement and disclosure of uncetéi positions recognized in the financial statet®elax positions must meet a "more-
likely-than-not" recognition threshold at the etige date to be recognized upon adoption and isegieent periods. Upon the adoption, and at
December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company did nat Aay uncertain tax positions. No interest and ltiesaelated to uncertain tax positions
were accrued at December 31, 2010 and 2009.

The tax years 2006 through 2009 remain dpexxamination by the major taxing jurisdictionsathich the Company operates. The
Company expects no material changes to unrecogtazegbsitions within the next twelve months.
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Results of Operations

The following table presents selected cosdd consolidated financial information for Sumiméant, Inc. and its subsidiaries for the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. The nuinitiies table and text below are in thousands &. dollars.

Year ended Year Ended
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Net sales $ 194,48! 10(% $ 153,48: 100.(%
Cost of goods sol 124,99 64.2% 98,23 64.(%
Gross Profil 69,49! 35.1%  55,24¢ 36.(%
SG&A expenses(z 54,44t 28.(%  40,52( 26.2%
Interest, taxes and other expen 8,45¢ 4.2% 9,074 5.8%
Net Income $ 6,58 3.8%%$ 5,65« 3.7%

(@) Excluding depreciation, amortization, deal-relafieel, and non-cash stock compensation expense.
Year ended December 31, 2010 compared with yeagdcebécember 31, 2009

Net sales increased 26.7% from $153,48haryear ended December 31, 2009 to $194,485 éoyahr ended December 31, 2010. This
increase was primarily attributable to increasesritiution of existing products throughout our cuser base, introduction of new products and
international growth.

Gross profit increased 25.8% from $55,2#8le year ended December 31, 2009 to $69,49%héoyear ended December 31, 2010. This
increase was primarily attributable to the 26.7%@ase in net sales. Gross profit percentage demtda 35.7% of sales for the year ended
December 31, 2010 from 36.0% in the prior yearnBicant items negatively impacting gross profiti@10 included a $712 charge related to
returns of sleep positioners, an $865 charge etkat¢he discontinuance of the fashion bedding peotine and a $297 charge related to the re-
labeling of video monitors.

Selling, general and administrative expsr{see note (a) above) increased 34.4% from $40¢528e year ended December 31, 2009 to
$54,445 for the year ended December 31, 2010.ifmbisase was primarily attributable to increasetbbéde costs such as co-op advertising
allowances as a result of the significant increasales. In addition, there were increased experasi in product development, payroll,
professional fees, and warehouse operations. Firsagjnificant items impacting this line item inZDincluded a $289 charge related to the
closing of the fashion bedding office, a $448 cleamjated to severance of two former executivesaa$@68 charge related to the consolidation
of distribution centers.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We generally fund our operations and wagldapital needs through cash generated from opasagéind borrowings under our credit
facility.

Our sales have increased significantly akierpast several years. This sales growth hat®ladubstantial increase in working capital
requirements, specifically accounts receivableiamentory. The typical cash flow cycle is as folkw

. Inventory is purchased to meet expected demandapbagety stock. Because the majority of our vesidoe based in Asi
inventory takes from four to six weeks to arrivenfr Asia to the various distribution points we maintin the US, Canada and
the UK. Payment terms for these vendors are apmabely 30- 60 days from the date the product shgra Asia, therefore we
are generally paying for the product a short tiffterat is physically received in the US. The
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increased sales we have experienced result indsedelevels of inventory, and therefore an incréaiee amount of cash
required to fund our inventory level.

. Sales to customers generally have payment terr@8 days. The increased sales have resulted incegeise in the level
accounts receivable, and therefore have increhasednmount of cash required to fund working capital.

We have traditionally been able to fund imereased working capital through lines of credih banks.

The majority of capital expenditures aretfls related to new product introductions. Weeree indications from retailers generally
around the middle of each year as to what prodhetsetailer will be taking into its product linerfthe upcoming year. Based on these
indications, we will then acquire the tools reqdite build the products. In most cases the paynfenthe tools are spread out over a three to
four month period.

For the year ended December 31, 2010,ast ased in operating activities totaled $8,86lckvrelate to increases in accounts receivable
and inventory.

Net cash used in investing activities wagraximately $8,782 which primarily relates to dapexpenditures and acquisitions.

Net cash provided by financing activitiesssapproximately $17,377 which relates to borrowifigm our debt facilities to fund the
working capital growth.

Based primarily on the above factors, teeaash increase for the year ended December 20,\&88s approximately $206, resulting in a
cash balance of approximately $ 1,138 at Decembge2(L0.

We believe that our cash on hand and culranking facilities are sufficient to fund our bagquirements for at least the next 12 months.
However, unforeseen circumstances, such as sofm#éss retail industry or deterioration in the imess of a significant customer could create
a situation where we cannot access all of the aaillines of credit due to not having sufficieasets or Adjusted EBITDA (as defined below)
as required under our loan agreements. There @ssurance that we will meet all of our bank covénanthe future, or that our lender will
grant waivers if there are covenant violationsadidition, should we need to raise additional futhdsugh additional debt or equity financings,
any sale of additional debt or equity securitiey mause dilution to existing stockholders. If sci#nt funds are not available or are not
available on acceptable terms, our ability to asisli@ny unexpected changes in our operations ceuidhiied. Furthermore, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to raise such fifretsd when they are required. Failure to obtaiife funding when needed or on acceptable
terms could materially adversely affect our resafteperations.

Our strategy for funding our business gdorgvard is a combination of increased profitapiliand if necessary, negotiation of increased
borrowing lines as required with traditional lergler

On August 2, 2010, we entered into a setaredit facility (the "Loan Agreement") with Baok America, N.A., as Administrative Aget
and each of the financial institutions that isgnatory to the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreememxiges for a $60,000 working capital
revolving credit facility and a $10,000 "accordiarrédit facility. The loan agreement matures oreJ8®, 2012.

Summer and its subsidiaries, Summer InfdA), Inc., Summer Infant Europe Limited, Summefiaht Asia Limited and Summer Infant
Canada, Limited are the borrowers under the Loareégent. This loan agreement replaced Summer'sliprgoof credit and is being used
principally to fund growth opportunities and for tking capital purposes.

Our ability to borrow under the Loan Agresrhis subject to its ongoing compliance with a banmof financial and other covenants,
including the following (i) that Summer and its sidiaries
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maintain adjusted EBITDA of at least $15,000 oredlihg twelve month basis, which escalates to 2@ by the end of the loan deal. (i) that
Summer and its subsidiaries maintain a ratio &ltoinded debt to adjusted EBITDA of not greatemt!3.25:1.00, and (iii) that Summer anc
subsidiaries maintain a ratio of operating castvfio debt service of not less than 1.50:1.00. Furtiore, if the ratio of total funded debt to
adjusted EBITDA is greater than 3.25:1.00 for asgdl year, the aggregate amount that may be bedawder the Loan Agreement will be
determined by reference to a borrowing base.

These credit facilities bear interest #bating rate based on a spread over LIBOR ranffimg 200 basis points to 250 basis points,
depending upon the ratio of the Company's totadiéaihdebt to adjusted EBITDA. The Company has al¢éered into various interest swap
agreements which fixes the interest rates on agooof the outstanding debt. As of December 31 02@e rate on these credit facilities
averaged 4.2%. In addition, these credit facilitiese an unused line fee based on the unused aribtlnet credit facilities equal to 25 basis
points.

The Loan Agreement also contains custoragents of default, including a cross default primvisand a change of control provision. In
event of a default, all of the obligations of then@pany and its subsidiaries under the Loan Agreémesy be declared immediately due and
payable. For certain events of default relatingnémlvency and receivership, all outstanding oliliges become due and payable.

As of December 31, 2010, we had $51,506tantling of the total committed amount of $70,00¢ailability under the credit facility was
approximately $5,746 at December 31, 2010.

We were in compliance with all covenant®BBecember 31, 2010.
The following table summarizes our sigrafit contractual commitments at December 31, 2010:

Payment Due by Period

2014 and
Contractual Obligations Total 2011 2012 2013 beyond
Line of credit/acquisition facility $ 51,50C $ 0 $ 51,500 $
Estimated future interest payments on lin

of credit 3,24t 2,16% 1,08:

Advances against international receivat 831 831
Operating lease 6,07¢ 1,36¢ 1,167 971 $ 2,57¢
Capital leases and other liabiliti 2,972 89¢ 724 474 87¢
Total contractual cash obligatio $ 64,62¢ $ 525¢ $ 54,47: $ 144t $ 3,45:

Estimated future interest payments on mér ¢f credit were based upon the interest rate$fect at December 31, 2010.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We did not have any off-balance sheet gearents during either of the years ended Decenhe2(®.0 and 2009.
Non-GAAP Discussion

In addition to our reported results, whirk prepared in accordance with generally accegatedunting principles ("GAAP"), we also
disclose non-GAAP measures of our performance,gtiynrelating to requirements under our creditlfaes. Adjusted EBITDA, as defined
below, is an important supplemental financial measd our performance that is not required by, respnted in accordance with, GAAP. As
used herein, "Adjusted EBITDA" represents net inedinss) before income taxes, interest expenséreleded expenses, depreciation and
amortization, and non-cash
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stock option expense. We believe that the predentaf Adjusted EBITDA provides useful informatioegarding our results of operations
because it assists in analyzing and benchmarkmgehformance and value of our business. We betieteAdjusted EBITDA is useful to
stockholders as a measure of comparative openaérfgrmance, as it is less susceptible to variamcastual performance resulting from
depreciation and amortization and more reflectifvehanges in pricing decisions, cost controls athetiofactors that affect operating
performance.

Adjusted EBITDA also is used by our managetdor multiple purposes, including:

. to calculate and support various coverage ratitis odr lenders;

. to allow lenders to calculate total proceeds treywélling to loan to us based on our relative sgth compared to other
competitors; and

. to more accurately compare our operating performdireem period to period and company to companylioyieating difference
caused by variations in capital structures (whieca relative interest expense), tax positions ambrtization of intangibles.

Although we use Adjusted EBITDA as a finmheeasure to assess the performance of our lassitteere are material limitations to using
a measure such as Adjusted EBITDA, including tlificdity associated with using it as the sole measa compare the results of one comg
to another and the inability to analyze significéeins that directly affect a company's net incqloss) or operating income because it does
include certain material costs, such as interedttaxes, necessary to operate its business. Iti@ddur calculation of Adjusted EBITDA may
not be consistent with similarly titted measuresthfer companies and should be viewed in conjunatith measures that are computed in
accordance with GAAP. Our management compensatelsdee limitations in considering Adjusted EBITIrAconjunction with its analysis
other GAAP financial measures, such as net income.

The following table presents a reconcitintof Adjusted EBITDA to net income, its most ditgcomparable GAAP financial measure,
a historical basis, for the periods presented:

Reconciliation of Income before interest to unaudid Adjusted EBITDA

Year Ended
December 31,
2010 2009
Income before intere: $ 10,378 $ 9,57
Plus: depreciation and amortizati 5,38¢ 4,15
Plus: deerelated expense — 21k
Plus: non-cash stock compensation
expense 1,05% 78%

Plus: other items(e 1,50¢ —
Adjusted EBITDA, as define $ 18,32 $ 14,72¢

The increase in Adjusted EBITDA for the fogsar has been primarily the result of the salessiase in 2010.
Sales increased from $153,481 in 2009 to $19442910.

€) For the year ended December 31, 2010 "Adjusted BEBIT as defined, includes the following items:

(1)  $712 charge related to returns of sleep positiori2jysh1,154 charge related to the discontinuari
fashion bedding; (3) $297 charge related to reliapef video monitors; (4) $1,770 gain related to
the settlement of an acquisition related liabil{y) $448 charge related to severance costs for two
former executives; (6) $668 charge related to tbgirg of two distribution centers. The net impact
of these items is a charge of $1,5
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
ASC Update No. 2010-06

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASC Upbiate2010-06, Fair Value Measurements and Disciss(ifopic 820)—Improving
Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements. Update2B10-06 requires additional disclosure withie tbllforward of activity for assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurrigib, including transfers of assets and liabiliiesveen Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy and the separate presentation of purshaakes, issuances and settlements of assetmhititids within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. In addition, Update No. 2010-06 requerebanced disclosures of the valuation techniqondsrguts used in the fair value
measurements within Level 2 and Level 3. We adopediate No. 201@6 for our first quarter ended March 31, 2010, exder the disclosur
of purchases, sales, issuances and settlemeneyef 8 measurements, for which disclosures willdzpiired for our first quarter ending
March 31, 2011. The adoption of this guidance haéffect on our consolidated financial positiorresults of operations.

ASC Update No. 2009-17

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASC Updiat. 2009-17, Consolidations (Topic 810)—Improvataedo Financial Reporting by
Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest Enstigvhich formally codifies FASB Statement No. 18mendments to FASB Interpretation
No. 46(R). Update No. 20-17 and Statement No. 167 amend InterpretatiorB(R), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entitigsrequire
that an enterprise perform an analysis to determvimether the enterprise's variable interests digecbntrolling financial interest in a variable
interest entity (VIE). The analysis identifies {w@mary beneficiary of a VIE as the enterprise theas both 1) the power to direct activities of a
VIE that most significantly impact the entity's @aomic performance and 2) the obligation to absosés of the entity or the right to receive
benefits from the entity. Update No. 200®8-eliminated the quantitative approach previowstuired for determining the primary beneficiar
a VIE and requires ongoing reassessments of whathenterprise is the primary beneficiary. We addpipdate No. 2009-17 for our first
guarter ended March 31, 2010. The adoption ofghidance had no effect on our consolidated findmpwaition or results of operations.

ASC Update No. 2009-13

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASC Updiaie2009-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605)—NMldtiDeliverable Revenue
Arrangements. The consensus in Update No. 20094i& sedes certain guidance in Topic 605 (formelTyFHssue No. 00-21, Multiple-
Element Arrangements). Update No. 2Q®provides principles and application guidancddtermine whether multiple deliverables exist,
the individual deliverables should be separatedranvdto allocate the revenue in the arrangemenngniwose separate deliverables. Update
No. 200¢-13 also expands the disclosure requirements fdtiptaesdeliverable revenue arrangements. We adoptedate No. 2009-13 as of
January 1, 2011. The adoption of this guidancerteaeffect on our consolidated financial positiorresults of operations.

ASC Update No. 2010-29

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASC Updlt. 2010-29, Business Combinations (Topic 805)se@sure of Supplementary Pro
Forma Information for Business Combinations. Updidde 2010-29 clarifies paragraph 805-10-50-2(heiguire public entities that enter into
business combinations that are material on an iithai&l or aggregate basis to disclose pro formarimétion for such business combinations
that occurred in the current reporting period, udahg pro forma revenue and earnings of the contbamgity as though the acquisition date had
been as of the beginning of the comparable priauahreporting period only. We are required to addgpdate
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No. 201(-29 for material business combinations for which élcquisition date is on or after January 1, 2011.

Management does not believe that any otreantly issued, but not yet effective, accounstemdards if currently adopted would have a
material effect on the accompanying financial stegets.

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Not applicable.
Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &a
The financial statements required by ttemiare attached to this Annual Report on Form Ife#inning on Page F-1.
Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accotents on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.
Item 9A Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Prouesk

As required by Rule 13a-15 under the SéesrExchange Act of 1934, as of the end of théogesovered by this Annual report, we
carried out an evaluation, under the supervisiahwith the participation of our Chief Executive @#r and our Chief Financial Officer, of the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and praoesias of December 31, 2010. Our principal exeewtfficer and principal financial officer
have concluded, based on their evaluation, thaf #s end of the period covered by this report,disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of December 31, 2010.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Control overancial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsiblestablishing and maintaining adequate internatrobover financial reporting. As defined
in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act, intecwltrol over financial reporting is a process des@yby, or under the supervision of , a
company's principal executive and principal finanhcifficers and effected by a company's board dadors, management and other personnel,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding théiléliaof financial reporting and the preparatiohfimancial statements for external purpose
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples It includes those policies and procedures th

1) Pertain to the maintenance of rectiidsin reasonable detail accurately and fairfient the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of a company;

2) Provide reasonable assurance thaddrdions are recorded as necessary to permitratepaof financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iples; and that receipts and expenditures of a emyppre being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management amthdlard of directors of the company; and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regapiEvention or timely detection of unauthorizeduasition, use or deposition of a
company's assets that could have a material affeits financial statements.
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Because of the inherent limitations, inggrcontrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

The Company's management has used theaegablished in "Internal Control—Integratedrireavork" issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommisgiBOSO") to evaluate the effectiveness of the Canyfs internal control over financial
reporting. Management has selected the COSO frankefaits evaluation as it is a control framewaoecognized by the SEC and the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board, that is fremfibias, permits reasonably consistent qualitativt quantitative measurement of the
Company's internal controls, is sufficiently contpleo that relevant controls are not omitted, amelievant to an evaluation of internal cont
over financial reporting.

Management of the Company conducted aruatiah of the effectiveness, as of December 31026flthe Company's internal control
over financial reporting based on the Internal @antIntegrated Framework issued by the Committe8mdnsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the "COSO Framework"). Basedsevaluation under the COSO Framework, managehees concluded that the
Company's internal control over financial reportimgs effective as of December 31, 2010.

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financialg®eting

There was no change in our internal cordvar financial reporting that occurred during thaarter ended December 31, 2010 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to erélly affect, our internal control over financigporting.

Iltem 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.

PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corprmate Governance

The information required by this Item vk contained in our definitive Proxy Statementediled with the SEC in connection with our
2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "2011 Rr8xatement”) under the captions "Election of Dtiveg," "Board of Directors Meetings
and Committees of the Board," "Executive Officaagtl "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reportirggrpliance" and is incorporated het
by reference.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics that eppd all our directors, officers and employees Tlode of Ethics is publicly available on our
website atvwww.summerinfant.com . Amendments to the Code of Ethics and any graatwéiver from a provision of the Code of Ethics
requiring disclosure under applicable SEC and Nasdkes will be disclosed on our website.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item vk incorporated by reference from the informatioder the caption "Executive Compensation”
contained in our 2011 Proxy Statement.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibfOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Mégrs

The information required by this item Wik incorporated by reference from the informatioder the caption "Ownership of Summer
Infant, Inc. Common Stock" contained in our 201&x§rStatement.

Equity Compensation Plan Informati

The following table summarizes share infation, as of December 31, 2010, for our equity censation plans, including the 2006
Performance Equity Plan.

Number of
Common Shares to Be
Issued Upon Exercise Weighted Average
of Outstanding Exercise Price of
Plan Category Option Grants Qutstanding Grants

Stock option plans

approved by

stockholder: 2,187,850 $ 3.9C
Equity compensation

plans not approved

by stockholder: — —

Total 2,187,851 $ 3.9C

In addition, during 2009 and 2010, 357,88lricted shares were granted to employees and boembers; 87,250 shares vested in 2009
and were issued, 80,750 shares vested in 2010 arglissued, 32,500 shares were cancelled, andl®bstares have not yet vested.

Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

The information required by this item wikk incorporated by reference from the informatioder the caption "Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions" contained in our 2011 Prdayegent.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item wakk incorporated by reference from the informatioder the captions "Audit Fees", "Audit-
Related Fees," "Tax Fees," "All Other Fees" ane-Rpproval Policies and Procedures"” contained m2@11 Proxy Statement.

PART IV
Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes
(@) (1) Financial Statements

The list of consolidated financial statertseand notes required by this Item 15 (a) (1) idax¢h in the "Index to Financial Statements” on
page F-1 of this Annual Report.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted becauseetipgired information is included in the financsétements or notes thereto.
(3) Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the "Index to Ext#liimmediately preceding the exhibits are filechagt of this Annual Report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduolp authorized on the 22nd day of March 2011.

SUMMER INFANT, INC.

By: /s/ JASON MACARI

Jason Macatri
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

By: /sl JOSEPH DRISCOLL

Joseph Driscoll
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the SeeariEixchange Act of 1934, this report has beenesidgrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated.

Name Title Date

s/ JASON MACARI Director and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Exgive

Officer)

March 22, 201.
Jason Macai

/s/ JOSEPH DRISCOL
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer) March 22, 201.

Joseph Driscol

/s MARTIN
FOGELMAN Director March 22, 201.
Martin Fogelmar
/sl ROBERT
STEBENNE Director March 22, 201.
Robert Stebenn
/s RICHARD WENZ
Director March 22, 201.
Richard Wen:
/s/ DERIAL SANDERS
Director March 22, 201.
Derial Sander
/sl DAN ALMAGOR
Director March 22, 201.

Dan Almagor
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Exhibits.

Index to Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description
2.1 Agreement and Plans of Reorganization dated &gpfember 1, 2006, by and among
KBL Healthcare Acquisition Corp. Il, and its wholbyvned subsidiary, Sl Acquisitic
Corp., Summer Infant, Inc. ("SII"), Summer InfanirBpe, Limited ("SIE") and
Summer Infant Asia, Ltd. ("SIA" and, collectivelyjth SIl and SIE, the "Targets") a
the stockholders of the Targets
2.2 Purchase and Sale Agreement dated March 24, [2808&en Summer Infant
(USA), Inc. and Faith Realty II, LLC(Z
2.3 Lease Agreement dated March 24, 2009 between ®utmiant (USA), Inc. and Faith
Realty II, LLC(2)
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatip
3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restatatificate of Incorporation(4
3.3 Bylaws(3)
4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate
10.1 Revolving Credit Agreement by and among Bank ofefica, N.A. and Summer
Infant, Inc., et al, dated April 10, 2008(
10.z Amendment to Revolving Credit Agreement by and agnBank of America, N.A. an
Summer Infant, Inc., et al, dated June 30, 200!
10.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among the Ragts Summer (USA), Inc
Kiddo Acquisition, Inc., and Kiddopotamus & Compaanyd certain of its stockholde
dated April 18, 2008(7
10.4 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as f A@il 2008, by and among Summer
Infant, Inc. and J. Chris Snedeker and KristenBeteSnedeker(i
10.t Registration Rights Agreement by and among thgigsRant, Jason Macari and Steven
Gibree(1)
10.6~* 2006 Performance Equity Plan|
10.7 Distribution and License Agreement by and betwelka Blanket Factory Ltd. ar
Summer Infant, Inc. dated February 9, 200°
10.&* Employment Agreement by and between the Registasd Jason Macari dated
February 1, 2010(1(
10.¢*  Side Letter between the Registrant and Josephd@iridated February 1, 2010(1
10.1¢*  Change of Control Agreement between the Registmadtloseph Driscoll(1(
10.17*  Summer Infant, Inc, 2010 Employee Performance ItieerPlan(10
10.12**  Side Letter between the Registrant and Steven &itbaéed February 5, 2010(1
10.1¥* Change of Control Agreement between the Regigteand Steven Gibree dated

February 5, 2010(11
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Exhibit No. Description
10.1#~* Separation and Release Agreement, dated as oéber 10, 2010, between the
Registrant and Steven Gibree(:

10.1¢ Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated A@y2§10, among the Registre
Summer Infant (USA), Inc., Kiddopotamus & CompaBgnk of America, N.A., as
administrative agent, swing lender, and L/C issard RBS Citizens, National
Association, as Collateral Agent, and other lendseseto(13’

10.1e~** Employment Offer Letter between the Registrant deffl Hale
21.1 List of Subsidiaries(14
23.17*  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing
23.2  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

31.1*  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuatat Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

31.z  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuattt Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

32.1*  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 13¢
(Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2*  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuattt 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
(Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

* Filed herewith
*x Management contract or compensatory plan or arraege

1) Incorporated by reference to Annexes of the Reagist Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14&dfFebruary 13,
2007

(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Regigts Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed Augi8t 2009

3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Regigts Form 8-A filed March 6, 2007

4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Reagigts Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 7,201

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Regigts Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 2Q08

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Regigts Annual Report on Form 10-K/A filed August 2809

) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Regigts Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 2408

(8) Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Regnt's Definitive Proxy on Schedule 14A filed Avypril 29, 2008
9) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Reagigts Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 1202

(10) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Regidts Current Report on Forr-K filed February 4, 201
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(11) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Regigts Current Report on Form 8-K filed Februar@]0
(12) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Regigts Current Report on Form 8-K filed December2(BLO
(13) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Regidts Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed Augus2@10

(14) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits to the Regigts Annual Report on Form-K filed March 27, 200¢
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Summer Infant, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying cons@itbtlance sheet of Summer Infant, Inc. and Swrgdias of December 31, 2010, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stodensl equity and cash flows for the year then en@lbdse financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Oyvaesibility is to express an opinion on these feiahstatements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qger8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrivdl control over financial reporting.
Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigranglit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsaimopinion on the effectiveness of the Companrdrols over financial reporting.

Accordingly, we express no such opinion.alit includes examining, on a test basis, evideaupporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includesssing the accounting principles used and sigmifiestimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement preg®n. We believe that our audit provides a reabte basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanattements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of
Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Decer@beP010, and the results of their operationsthait cash flows for the year then endec
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounfnigciples.

/s McGladrey & Pullen, LLP

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
Boston, Massachusetts
March 22, 201:
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Summer Infant, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying cons@itbtlance sheet of Summer Infant, Inc. and Swrgdias of December 31, 2009, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stodensl equity and cash flows for the year then en@lbdse financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Oyvaesibility is to express an opinion on these feiahstatements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qger8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdinthecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrivdl control over financial reporting.

Our audit included consideration of internal col#traver financial reporting as a basis for desigrandit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsaimopinion on the effectiveness of the Companrdrols over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audifudes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdghe amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes agsgdbe accounting principles used and signifiesiimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement preg@naWe believe that our audit provides a reastmbasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanattements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of
Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of Decer@beR009, and the results of their operationsthait cash flows for the year then endec
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounfinigciples.

/s/ Caturano and Company, P

Boston, Massachusetts
March 10, 201(
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Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
Note that all amounts presented in theetlelow are in thousands of U.S. dollars, exceptesamounts and par value per share.

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivale $ 1,13¢ $ 932
Trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtfloamts o
$90 and $107 at December 31, 2010 and 2009,

respectively 46,69: 32,52(
Inventory, ne 45,85 32,01:
Prepaids and other current as: 2,78: 2,49t
Deferred tax asse 1,26¢ 1,071
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 97,73¢ 69,03(
Property and equipment, r 14,95¢ 11,48¢
Goodwill 50,37¢ 49,49¢
Other intangible assets, r 14,74¢ 15,70¢
Other asset 181 237

TOTAL ASSETS $ 177,99t $ 145,95:

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Line of credit and current portion of lo-term debt 1,25¢ 2,66:
Accounts payable and accrued expet 35,65: 29,96¢
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 36,90" 32,62¢
Long-term debt, less current portir 51,96: 31,78(
Other liabilities 4,57¢ 6,957
Deferred tax liabilities 8,08t 5,607
TOTAL LIABILITIES 101,53« 76,97

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock $.0001 par value, issued and outstgndi
15,450,227 and 15,356,727 at December 31, 2010 a

2009, respectivel 1 1
Additional paic-in capital 56,43 55,34
Retained earning 20,49( 13,90:
Accumulated other comprehensive | (461) (26€)

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 76,46 68,98(

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY  $ 177,99t $ 145,95!

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

Note that all amounts presented in theetabld the notes to the table below are in thousahdsS. dollars, except share and per share
amounts.

For the year ended
December 31, 201/ December 31, 200!

Net sales $ 194,48¢ $ 153,48:
Cost of goods sol 124,99: 98,23:
Gross profi 69,49 55,24¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 55,50: 41,52(
Gain on settlement of acquisition related liabi 2,770 —
Depreciation and amortizatic 5,38¢ 4,15t
Net operating incom 10,37¢ 9,57:
Interest expense, n (1,739 (2,499
Income before provision for income tay 8,641 8,07t
Provision for income taxe 2,05t 2,421
NET INCOME $ 6,587 $ 5,654
Net income per share BAS| $ 04: $ 0.37
Weighted average shares outstanding BA 15,431,80 15,238,03
Net income per share DILUTE $ 4C 8 0.3¢
Weighted average shares outstanding DILU1 16,408,59 15,735,57

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashdus)
provided by operating activitie

Change in value of interest rate swap agreen

Depreciation and amortizatic

Stoclk-based compensatic

Deferred income taxe

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effettcquisitions
Increase in accounts receiva
(Increase) decrease in inventt
Decrease (increase) in prepaids and other curssets
Decrease in other ass:
Increase in accounts payable and accrued exp

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions of property and equipme
Acquisitions of other intangible assi
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net borrowings (repayments) of de

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodbg
Proceeds received from s-leaseback of proper

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casyaénts
Net increase in cash and cash equival

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of"

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati

Cash paid during the year for inter

Cash paid during the year for income ta

Non cash investing/financing activitie

Issuance of common stock in conjunction with

acquisitions (see note 1) 20
Capital lease obligations incurr

Note that all amounts presented in thech#d table are in thousands of U.S. dollars.

For the year ended

December 31, 2010

December 31, 2009

$ 6,587 $ 5,65¢
(47€) (329)
5,38¢ 4,15¢
1,057 78t
2,27¢ 197
(14,75 (2,529)
(14,447) 62¢
(331) (955)
56 17¢
5,771 3,87:
(8,86)) 11,65¢
(7,902) (3,861)
— (14€)
(880) (1,830)
(8,787) (5,83))
17,34¢ (9,78¢)
32
— 4,05:
17,37 (5,73])
47z (146)
20€ (56)
93z 08¢
$ 1,13t $ 93z
$ 1,82¢ $ 1,397
$ 2,06¢ $ 2,02t
$ — % 462
$ 715 $ 407

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Summer Infant, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Note that all amounts presented in thech#d table are in thousands of U.S. dollars.

Additional Accumulated Total
Paid in Retained Comprehensive Comprehensive Stockholders
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Income Equity

Commons Stock

Balance at

December 3.

2008

(restated 15,055,80 $ 1 $ 54,09t $ 8,24¢ $ (882) $ 61,46:
Acquisition of

Butterfly

Living 213,67! 462 462
Issuance o

common

stock upon

vesting of

restricted

shares 87,25(
Stock-based

compensati 78t 78t
Net income fa

the yeat 5,654 5,654
Foreign

currency

translation

adjustmen 61€ 61€

Total

comprehen:

income $ 6,27( 6,27(

Balance at
December 3.
2009 15,356,72 $ 1 $ 55,34: $13,90: $ (26€) $ 68,98(

Issuance o

common

stock upon

vesting of

restricted

shares 80,75(
Issuance of

common

stock upon

exercise of

stock

options 12,75( 32 32
Stock-based

compensati 1,057 1,057
Net income fo

the yeat 6,587 6,587
Foreign

currency

translation

adjustmen (195 (195
Total

comprehen:

income 6,392 6,392

Balance at
December



31, 201C 15,450,22 $ 1 $ 56,43. $20,49( $ (462) $ 76,46

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Acquisition of Summer Infant, Inc. by KBL Healthredcquisition Corp. |

On March 6, 2007, under an Agreement aad$Pbf Reorganization, dated as of September B @@@quisition Agreement"), KBL
Healthcare Acquisition Corp. Il ("KBL"), and its why owned subsidiary, Sl Acquisition Corp. ("Adgition Sub"), consummated a
transaction by which (i) Summer Infant, Inc. ("§Was merged with and into Acquisition Sub anddii)of the outstanding capital stock of
each of Summer Infant Europe, Limited ("SIE") andr®ner Infant Asia, Ltd. ("SIA") was acquired difgdby KBL. As used in this Report, t
term "Company" means the registrant on a post-aioui basis.

Effective upon closing, the Company chaniggdame to Summer Infant, Inc. and Sl changeddme to Summer Infant (USA), Inc.
Thus, the Company is now a holding company callethi8er Infant, Inc. operating through its wholly-adhsubsidiaries, Summer Infant
(USA), Inc., Summer Infant Europe, Limited, and Soen Infant Asia, Ltd.

At the closing of the acquisition, the Suemrstockholders received from the Company an aggeegf $20,000 cash and 3,916,667 shares
of Company common stock (“Transaction Shares").

On November 7, 2008, Summer Infant (USAY, kcreated a wholly-owned subsidiary called Sumimiant Canada, Ltd. ("SIC").
Company Overview

The Company is a designer, marketer, asitiilolitor of branded juvenile health, safety andivess products which are sold principally to
large North American and United Kingdom retaildfse Company currently markets proprietary producisarious product categories
including nursery audio/video monitors, safety gaturable bath products, bed rails, infant theretens, related health and safety products,
booster and potty seats, cribs, baby gear, bouacerswaddling blankets.

Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation Rridciples of Consolidatiol

It is the Company's policy to prepare itafcial statements on the accrual basis of acoayirt conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amefite consolidated financial statements includeatteunts of its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

All significant intercompany accounts anghsactions have been eliminated in the consaotidati
Revenue Recognitic

The Company records revenue when all ofdhewing occur: persuasive evidence of an arramget exists, product delivery has
occurred, the sales price to the customer is foredeterminable, and collectability is reasonalsisuaed. Sales are recorded net of provisions
for returns and allowances, customer discountsodimelr sales related discounts. The Company btsestimates for discounts, returns and
allowances on negotiated customer terms and hisiakperience. Customers do not have the righgtton products unless the products are
defective. The Company records a reduction of daleastimated future defective product deductibased on historical experience.

Sales incentives or other consideratiorigibty the Company to customers that are considetipdtments of the selling price of its
products, such as markdowns, are reflected as tiedaof
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SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)
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revenue. Sales incentives and other considerdiatrépresent costs incurred by the Company fateiss services received, such as the
appearance of the Company's products in a customegibnal circular ad, are reflected as selling rwarketing expenses in the accompanying
statements of income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash fleash and cash equivalents include money markeuats and investments with an original
maturity of three months or less. At times, the @any possesses cash balances in excess of fedaglhgd limits.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are reported at thestanting unpaid principal balances reduced by lawahce for doubtful accounts. The Company
estimates doubtful accounts based on historicadedds, factors related to specific customersitgtd pay and current economic trends. The
Company writes off accounts receivable againsatlmevance when a balance is determined to be wextdile.

Inventory

Inventory is comprised of finished goods @&stated at the lower of cost using the firstfimst-out (FIFO) method, or market (net
realizable value). The Company regularly revievesvsinoving and excess inventories, and writes downritorées to net realizable value if t
ultimate expected proceeds from the disposals eésxinventory are less than the carrying cogiefterchandise.

Property and Equipmet

Property and equipment are recorded at ¢h&t Company owns the molds used in the produdidts products by third party
manufacturers. Capitalized mold costs include costsrred for the pre-production design and develept of the molds.

Depreciation is provided over the estimatseiful lives of the respective assets using egtraight-line or accelerated methods.
Impairment of Lon-Lived Assets

The Company reviews lotiged assets for impairment whenever events or gésitin circumstances indicate that the carryinguarhof a
long-lived asset may not be recoverable. An assebisidered to be impaired when its carrying arhexoeeds the sum of the undiscounted
future net cash flows expected to result from the of the asset and its eventual disposition. Lvagh assets include property and equipment.
The amount of impairment loss, if any, is charggdhe Company to current operations. For eacheftars ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, no such impairment existed.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for Goodwill and Oth&ngible Assets in accordance with accountingayce that requires that goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful liwedonger be subject to amortization and be testdelst annually for impairment.
Management evaluates the remaining useful lifendhtangible asset that is not being amortized eaphbrting period to
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determine whether events and circumstances continsigpport an indefinite useful life. If an intaplg asset that is not being amortized is

subsequently determined to have a finite usefe] ltfis amortized prospectively over its estimatuaining useful life. For the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company has dekdrtiiat no such impairment existed.

Fair Value Measuremen

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company &tbASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuhésh establishes a new framework
for measuring fair value and expands related désckes. Broadly, the framework requires fair valuéeé determined based on the exchange
price that would be received for an asset or paitansfer a liability (an exit price) in the pripal or most advantageous market for the asset of
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants. The standard established a thredd@heation hierarchy based upon observable
and non-observable inputs.

Observable inputs reflect market data oletifrom independent sources, while unobservaplatéreflect our market assumptions.
Preference is given to observable inputs. Theseaypes of inputs create the following fair valuetairchy:

Level 1—Quoted prices for identical instrumentaative markets.

Level 2—Quoted prices for similar instruments itivae markets; quoted prices for identical or simifestruments in markets that are
not active; and model-derived valuations whose tisjane observable or whose significant value dsiaee observable.

Level 3—Significant inputs to the valuation modeg anobservable.

The Company maintains policies and procesito value instruments using the best and mastaet data available. In addition, the
Company utilizes risk management resources th&wewvaluation, including independent price validati

The Company has used derivatives to figredt rates. As a matter of policy, the Companys ¢ use derivatives for speculative
purposes. This is a requirement in the Compangis &greement to mitigate interest rate risk.
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The Company recognizes the fair value tdrigst rate swaps using Level 2 inputs.

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments

2010 2009
Liability Derivatives
Balance Change in Balance Change in
Sheet Fair Fair Value Sheet Fair Fair Value
Location Value Gain/(Loss) Location Value Gain/(Loss)

(In Thousands of Dollars)
As of December 3

Derivatives not designated a
hedging instruments under
Subtopic 81-20

Other Other
Interest rate contrac liabilities $ 34t $ (47€) liabilites $ 821 $ (329
Total derivatives not
designated as hedging
instruments under
Subtopic 81-20 $ 34t $ 821

The notional amounts under the interest satap agreements total $10,000, which is apprdei;na0% of the Company's total
outstanding bank debt at December 31, 2010.

The Company's financial instruments incladsh and cash equivalents, accounts and notagakleg interest rate swaps, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and short and longbtemowings. Because of their short maturity, theyiag amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts and notes receivable, acs@ayable, accrued expenses and short-term bomgewaipproximate fair value. The carrying
value of long-term borrowings approximates fairmealwhich is based on quoted market prices or s l@vailable to the Company for debt
with similar terms and maturities.

Income taxe

Income taxes are computed using the assdliability method of accounting. Under the asaed liability method, a deferred tax asset or
liability is recognized for estimated future tafeets attributable to temporary differences andyéarwards. The measurement of deferred
income tax assets is adjusted by a valuation alo®aif necessary, to recognize future tax benefitg to the extent, based on available
evidence, it is more likely than not that such bigaevill be realized.

Previously, the Company adopted the prowisiof a new standard which provides detailed gudddor the financial statement
recognition, measurement and disclosure of uncetéi positions recognized in the financial statet®elax positions must meet a "more-
likely-than-not" recognition threshold at the etige date to be recognized upon adoption and isegieent periods. Upon the adoption, and at
December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company did na aay uncertain tax positions. No interest and fpesaelated to uncertain tax positions
were accrued at December 31, 2010 and 2009.
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The tax years 2006 through 2009 remain @pexamination by the major taxing jurisdictionsahich the Company operates. The
Company expects no material changes to unrecogtaxegubsitions within the next twelve months.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

The assets and liabilities of the CompaBypean, Canadian, and Asian operations havetteesiated into U.S. dollars at year-end
exchange rates. All assets and liabilities of tbenBGany’'s foreign affiliates are translated into.Ui&lars at the exchange rate in effect at the
end of the year and the income and expense accolittsse affiliates have been translated at aeeraigs prevailing during each respective
year. Resulting translation adjustments are madestparate component of stockholders' equity wilkcumulated other comprehens
income (loss).

Shipping Costs

Shipping costs are included in selling eges and amounted to approximately $3,260 and 62¢66he years ended December 31, 2010
and 2009, respectively.

Advertising Cost

The Company charges advertising costs pemse as incurred. Advertising expense, which stprimarily of promotional and
cooperative advertising allowances provided toamsts, was approximately $15,445 and $10,827 foyéars ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with accounting principles generally epted in the United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assusihiat affect certain reported amounts and diaodss Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Net Income Per Sha

Basic earnings per share is calculatedilagidg net income for the period by the weightegi@ge number of common stock outstanding
during the period.

Diluted earnings per share for the Compargpmputed by dividing net income by the sum lo& weighted-average number of shares of
common stock outstanding during the period; thetidié impact (using the "treasury stock” methodJjinfthe money" stock options; and
unvested restricted shares issued to employeemr3b purchase 28,000 and 957,600 shares ofdhg@ény's common stock were not
included in the calculation, due to the fact tieise options were anti-dilutive for the years erdedember 31, 2010 and 2009.

New Accounting Pronounceme
ASC Update No. 2010-06

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASC Upbtiate2010-06, Fair Value Measurements and Disclss(iFopic 820)—Improving
Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements. Update2B10-06 requires additional disclosure withie thllforward of activity for assets and
liabilities measured at fair
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value on a recurring basis, including transferagsfets and liabilities between Level 1 and Lewe the fair value hierarchy and the separate
presentation of purchases, sales, issuances dlahsgits of assets and liabilities within Levelf3he fair value hierarchy. In addition, Update
No. 201(-06 requires enhanced disclosures of the valuaticmiques and inputs used in the fair value measents within Level 2 and

Level 3. We adopted Update No. 20a@®+or our first quarter ended March 31, 2010, exder the disclosure of purchases, sales, isssasce
settlements of Level 3 measurements, for whichlassres will be required for our first quarter emglMarch 31, 2011. The adoption of this
guidance had no effect on our consolidated findmpwaition or results of operations.

ASC Update No. 2009-17

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASC Updlt. 2009-17, Consolidations (Topic 810)—Improvatedo Financial Reporting by
Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest Enstigvhich formally codifies FASB Statement No. 18/endments to FASB Interpretation
No. 46(R). Update No. 20-17 and Statement No. 167 amend InterpretatiodB(R), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entitiesyequire
that an enterprise perform an analysis to determimether the enterprise's variable interests diaecontrolling financial interest in a variable
interest entity (VIE). The analysis identifies fhhémary beneficiary of a VIE as the enterprise thad both 1) the power to direct activities of a
VIE that most significantly impact the entity's @aomic performance and 2) the obligation to absosés of the entity or the right to receive
benefits from the entity. Update No. 2009-eliminated the quantitative approach previoustired for determining the primary beneficiar
a VIE and requires ongoing reassessments of whathenterprise is the primary beneficiary. We addpipdate No. 2009-17 for our first
quarter ended March 31, 2010. The adoption ofghidance had no effect on our consolidated findmpgaition or results of operations.

ASC Update No. 2009-13

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASC Updiaie2009-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605)—NMiltiDeliverable Revenue
Arrangements. The consensus in Update No. 20094i&sedes certain guidance in Topic 605 (formeflyFHssue No. 00-21, Multiple-
Element Arrangements). Update No. 2Qprovides principles and application guidancddtermine whether multiple deliverables exist,
the individual deliverables should be separatedhavd to allocate the revenue in the arrangemenngriwose separate deliverables. Update
No. 200¢-13 also expands the disclosure requirements fdtiptetdeliverable revenue arrangements. We adopigdate No. 2009-13 as of
January 1, 2011. The adoption of this guidancerfwaeffect on our consolidated financial positionmresults of operations.

ASC Update No. 2010-29

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASC Updiat. 2010-29, Business Combinations (Topic 805)seldsure of Supplementary Pro
Forma Information for Business Combinations. Updéte 2010-29 clarifies paragraph 805-10-50-2(heiguire public entities that enter into
business combinations that are material on an iithaiél or aggregate basis to disclose pro formarimé&tion for such business combinations
that occurred in the current reporting period, idahg pro forma revenue and earnings of the contbamity as though the acquisition date had
been as of the beginning of the comparable priouahreporting period only. We are required to addpdate No. 2010-29 for material
business combinations for which the acquisitioredsaion or after January 1, 2011.

Management does not believe that any atwantly issued, but not yet effective, accounstamdards if currently adopted would have a
material effect on the accompanying financial stegets.
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Property and equipment, at cost, consishefollowing:

December 31, Depreciation/
2010 2009 Amortization Period
(In Thousands)
Compute-related $ 3,166 $ 2,03t 5 years
Tools and dies and
Prototypes/mold 14,94« 10,15¢ 1-5years
Building 4,15¢ 4,15¢ 30 years
Other 3,00(¢ 2,05¢ various

25,26¢ 18,40¢
Less accumulate

depreciatior 10,30¢ 6,91¢
Property and Equipmen
net $ 14,95¢ $ 11,48¢

Property and equipment includes amountsieed under capital leases of approximately $1 &28 $915 at December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, with related accumulated depreciatibapproximately $394 and $241, respectively. Befation is included in general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying cothestald statements of income. Total depreciationesgevas $4,425 and $3,579 for the
years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respgc

3. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

Gooduwill is tested for impairment on an aahbasis and more frequently if facts and circameés indicate goodwill carrying values
exceed estimated fair values. Because the Compafully integrated its acquisitions, it has detieed that it has only one reporting unit for
purposes of testing for goodwill impairment. Basedhe impairment tests performed, there was naimpent of goodwill in 2010 or 2009.

The change in goodwill during the yearsezhBecember 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 wadlasd:

(In Thousands)

2010 2009
Balance at beginning of ye $ 49,49¢ $ 44,45

Acquisitions and other adjustme! 87¢ 5,04
Balance at end of ye: $ 50,37¢ $ 49,49¢
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3. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Intangible asset
Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31,

2010 2009
(In Thousands)

Brand name $ 10,90C $ 10,90(
Patents and licens: 1,581 1,581
Customer listt 2,35¢ 2,35¢
Other intangible: 1,88¢ 1,994

16,72: 16,83(
Less:Accumulated amortizatic (1,97¢) (1,12¢)
Intangible assets, n $ 14,74¢ $ 15,70¢

The amortization period for the intangibbsets ranges from 5 to 10 years for those assthdve an estimated life; certain of the assets
have indefinite lives (including brand names andesal significant customer relationships). Totalraangibles not subject to amortization
amounted to $10,746 and $13,255 for the years eDdedmber 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Theeenmampairment of intangible assets
in 2010 or 2009.

Amortization expense amounted to $959 &Gt $or the years ended December 31, 2010 and 288%ectively. Estimated amortization
expense for the next five years is as follows:

Year ending December 31, (In Thousands)
2011 $ 94¢
2012 711
2013 682
2014 31t
2015 1,34¢

4. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accounts payable and accrued expensesstarighe following:

December 31,

2010 2009
(In Thousands)

Accounts payabl $ 20,120 $ 17,90(
Customer advertising and allowant 4,702 3,13¢
Accrued purchases of inventc 7,86¢ 3,86(
Other (none in excess of 5% of curr

liabilities) 2,95 5,07z
Total $ 35,65. $ 29,96¢

5. DEBT
Credit Facilities

On August 2, 2010, the Company enteredardecured credit facility (the "Loan AgreementijhmBank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, and each of the financialigions a signatory
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to the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement providea $60,000 working capital revolving credit fidgiand a $10,000 "accordion” credit
facility. This deal amended the previous loan agrert which was capped at $46,000 of loan capaEitg.amounts outstanding under the
revolving credit facility are payable in full upematurity. The credit facilities mature on June 3012. The amount outstanding on the credit
facilities at December 31, 2010 was $51,500, ardathount of availability was approximately $5,746.

Aggregate maturities of long term debttesdieto this note are as follows:

(In Thousands)

Year ending December 3 2011 $ 0
2012 51,50(
Total $ 51,50(

The Company and its subsidiaries, Summfant(USA), Inc. Summer Infant Europe Limited, Susrninfant Asia Limited and Summer
Infant Canada, Limited are the borrowers underltbsn Agreement. This credit facility is secureddopstantially all of the assets of the
Company.

The Company's ability to borrow under tloah Agreement is subject to its ongoing compliamite a number of financial and other
covenants, including the following: (i) that ther@pany and its subsidiaries maintain EBITDA (asmksdiin the Loan Agreement) of at least
$15,000 on a trailing twelve month basis, (i) ttie Company and its subsidiaries maintain a @fttotal funded debt to EBITDA of not
greater than 3.25:1.00, and (iii) that the Compamg its subsidiaries maintain a ratio of operatiagh flow to debt service of not less than
1.50:1.00. Furthermore, if the Company's raticotédltfunded debt to EBITDA is greater than 3.2501f@ any fiscal year, the aggregate
amount that may be borrowed under the Loan Agreemidirbe determined by reference to a borrowingdarhe Company is in compliance
with these and other covenants at December 31,.2010

These credit facilities bear interest #bating rate based on a spread over LIBOR ranffimg 200 basis points to 250 basis points,
depending upon the ratio of the Company's totadéashdebt to EBITDA. The previous loan agreementaiord an interest rate spread of 150
to 200 basis points over LIBOR. The Company has efdered into various interest swap agreementshifhies the interest rates on a portion
of the outstanding debt. As of December 31, 201®rate on these credit facilities averaged 4.20&addition, these credit facilities have an
unused line fee based on the unused amount oféldd €acilities equal to 25 basis points.

The Loan Agreement also contains custoragents of default, including a cross default primvisand a change of control provision. In
event of a default, all of the obligations of then@pany and its subsidiaries under the loan Agreémey be declared immediately due and
payable. For certain events of default relatingnémlvency and receivership, all outstanding oliliges become due and payable.

During 2010, the Company also initiatechgreement to borrow against certain internatioeegivables. Approximately $831 relating to
this agreement is included in current portion afgderm debt at December 31, 2010.

Sale-Leaseback

On March 24, 2009 the Company enteredardefinitive agreement with Faith Realty 1l, LLCR&ode Island limited liability company
("Faith Realty") (the members of which are Jasorcéia the
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current Chairman of the board of Directors and €Chieecutive Officer of the Company, and his spoupajsuant to which Faith Realty
purchased the corporate headquarters of the Compeated at 1275 Park East Drive, Woonsocket, Ritslded (the "Headquarters"), for
$4,052 and subsequently leased the Headquartdrgsd&ummer USA for an annual rent of $390 durlmginitial seven year term of the lea
payable monthly and in advance. The lease willrexph the seventh anniversary of its commencemaass an option period is exercised by
Summer USA. At that time, Summer USA will have tpportunity to extend the lease for one additigraalod of five years. If Summer USA
elects to extend the term of the lease for an mddit five years, the annual rent for the first tyaars of the extension term shall be equal to
$429 and for the final three years of the extengom shall be equal to $468. In addition, during first six months of the last lease year of the
initial term of the lease, Summer USA has the optmrepurchase the Headquarters for $4,457 (11f0%tednitial sale price). With the
majority of the proceeds of the sale of the headgtmSummer USA paid off the construction loamatiah to the Headquarters. Mr. Macari |
given a personal guarantee to secure the FaithyRaéstht on its mortgage; therefore, due to hisiooitig involvement in the building
transaction and the Company's option to repurctiesbuilding, the transaction has been recordedfemncing lease, with no gain recognit
At December 31, 2010, approximately $60 was indudeaccounts payable and accrued expenses, withalance of approximately $3,724
included in other liabilities, in the accompanyitansolidated balance sheet. This obligation iscedweach month (along with a charge to
interest expense) as the rent payment is madeitto Raalty.

On February 25, 2009, the Company's boaRirectors (with Mr. Macari abstaining from sucttian) approved the sale leaseback
transaction. In connection therewith, the boarchtgd a potential waiver, to the extent necessta,all, of the conflict of interest provisions
the Company's Model code of Ethics, effective upracution of definitive agreements within the pagters approved by the Board. In
connection with granting such potential waiver, Board of Directors engaged independent counseiiew the sale leaseback transaction
an independent appraiser to ascertain (i) the vafitiee Headquarters and (ii) the market rentliertleadquarters. In reaching its conclusion
that the sale leaseback transaction is fair t@Chimpany, the Board of Directors considered a nurob&actors, including Summer USA's
ability to repurchase the headquarters at 110%epfttitial sale price at the end of the initialnter

In addition, the Company's Audit Commitgggproved the sale leaseback transaction (as adegarty transaction) and the potential
waiver and recommended the matter to a vote oétiiee Board of Directors (which approved the teat®n).

6. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes is summatias follows:

2010 2009
(In Thousands)
Current:
Federa $ (268 $ 902
Foreign 76¢ 864
State and Loce 273 462
Total Current 774 2,22¢
Deferred (primarily federa 1,281 192
Total expens: $ 2,058 $ 2,421
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The tax effects of temporary differencest tomprise the deferred tax liabilities and asasgsas follows:

2010 2009
(In Thousands)

Assets (Liabilities’
Deferred tax ass-current:
Accounts receivable and inventory

reserve: $ 361 $ 301
Research and development credit carr
forward and othe 90¢ 77C
Net deferred tax as«-current 1,26¢ 1,071
Deferred tax (liability) ass-nor-current:
Intangible assets and ott (5,620 (4,227)
Property, plant and equipme (2,465 (2,380
Net deferred tax liability nc-current: (8,08¢) (5,607)
Net deferred income tax liabilii $ (6,81f) $ (4,536

The following reconciles the provision focome taxes at the U.S. federal income tax statutde to the expense in the consolidated
financial statements:

2010 2009
(In Thousands)

Tax expense at statutory r: $ 2,93t $ 2,74¢
State income taxes, net of U.S. fedt

income tax benef 371 33:
Foreign income and tax cred (1,467 (901)
Non-deductible expense 21€ 25€
Other 9 (12)
Total expens: $ 2,058 $ 2,421

The Company has undistributed earnings fiterforeign subsidiaries of approximately $7,24@acember 31, 2010 which is all
considered to be permanently reinvested due t€tmpany's plans to reinvest such earnings for éutxpansion in certain foreign
jurisdictions. The amount of taxes attributabléhte permanently reinvested undistributed earniaget practicably determinab

Upon the adoption, and at December 31, 2002009, the Company did not have any uncerg&ipositions. No interest and penalties
related to uncertain tax positions were accruddegember 31, 2010 and 2009. The tax years 2006¢ghra009 remain open to examinatior
the major taxing jurisdictions in which the Compamperates. The Company expects no material changesecognized tax positions within
the next twelve months.

Also, the 2009 deferred tax liability anabgwill were increased to reflect a reclassificatielating to prior year acquisitions. The
reclassification had no effect on the Company'slte®f operations.
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The Company has granted stock options esiticted shares under its 2006 Performance E&léty ("2006 Plan"). Under the 2006 Plan,
awards may be granted to participants in the fofidan-Qualified Stock Options, Incentive Stock @pi$, Restricted Stock, Deferred Stock,
Stock Reload Options and other stock-based awardgect to the provisions of the plan, awards magfanted to employees, officers,
directors, advisors and consultants who are deemkdve rendered or are able to render signifisantices to the Company or its subsidiaries
and who are deemed to have contributed or to Hevedtential to contribute to our success. The Gomp@mccounts for options under the fair
value recognition standard. The application of gtédard resulted in share-based compensatiomsxper the years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009 of $1,057 and $785, respectivellcktased compensation expense is included in getieneral and administrative expenses.
There were no share-based payment arrangementalizagoi as part of the cost of an asset.

The fair value of each option award isreatied on the date of grant using the Black-Schoi¢ien valuation model that uses the
assumptions noted in the following table. Summarihaufficient history by which to estimate the egfed term of the options, but used an
estimate for grants of "plain vanilla" stock optsdsased on a formula prescribed by the SEC. Forésitare estimated at the time of grant and
revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods ifeéorfeitures differ from those estimates. Stbelsed compensation expense recognized i
consolidated financial statements in 2010 and 20@@&sed on awards that are ultimately expectegst

The following table summarizes the weighagdrage assumptions used for options grantedglthinyear ended December 31, 2010 and
20009.

2010 2009
Expected life (in years 6.C 5.2

Risk-free interest rat 1.18% 2.4<%
Volatility 55% 35%
Dividend yield 0% 0%
Forfeiture rate 10% 10%

The weighted-average grant date fair vafugptions granted during the year ended DecembeP@L0 was $3.19 per share which totals
$603 for the 189,500 options granted during sucfogdeDuring the year ended December 31, 2009wtighted-average grant date fair value
of options granted was $0.73 per share which tt&#88 for the 1,079,000 options granted duringytes.

A summary of the status of the Companytgoap as of December 31, 2010 and changes durengear then ended is presented below:

Weighted-
Average
Number Of Exercise
Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of ye 2,014,600 $ 3.7C
Granted 189,50( $ 5.9¢
Exercisec (22,750 $ 2.5t
Cancelec (3,500 $ 4.7i
Outstanding at end of ye 2,187,851 $  3.9C
Options exercisable at December 31,
2010 1,148,200 $  4.3¢
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The intrinsic value of options exercisethted $10 and $0 for the years ended December3D, &nd 2009, respectively.

The following table summarizes informatafyout stock options at December 31, 2010:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Year Granted Range of Exercise Price Outstanding Life (years) Price Exercisable Price
2007 $5.20- $5.25 935,60( 6.5 $§ 5.2 816,70( $ 5.27
2009 $2.14- $4.33 1,064,25I 82 $ 237 331,50 $ 2.2¢
2010 $5.36- $7.79 188,00( 95 § 594 0 —

The aggregate intrinsic value of optiontstanding and options exercisable at December@Il) & $2,830 and $1,467, respectively.

Remaining
Number of Grant Date Contractual
Options Fair Value Life
Non-Vested options &

December 31, 200 1,431,801 $ 0.94 8.C
Options Grantel 189,50( 3.1¢ 9.t
Options Vestel (578,15() 1.15 6.2
Options forfeitec (3,500 2.0z 9.C
Non-Vested options at

December 31, 201 1,039,65!

As of December 31, 2010, there was appratéiy $966 of unrecognized compensation cost rtl@meon-vested stock option awards,

which is expected to be recognized over a remaiwieightedaverage vesting period of 2 years. The total falue of options vested during 1
year ended December 31, 2009 was $.

Restricted stock awards require no payrfrent the grantee. The related compensation cosaofi award is calculated using the market
price on the grant date and is expensed equallytbheevesting period. A summary of restricted staakards for the Company's stock incentive
plan for the year ended December 31, 2010, is|ksve:

Grant

Number of Date
Shares Fair Value

Unvested restricted stock awards a

December 31, 200 242.25( $ 2.17
Granted 8,00( 6.5¢
Vested (80,75() 2.17
Forfeited (13,000 2.17
Unvested restricted stock awards as ¢

December 31, 201 156,50( $ 2.4C

As of December 31, 2010, there was appratetg $375 of unrecognized compensation cost km@on-vested stock compensation

arrangements granted under the Company's stochktineglan for restricted stock awards. That cesbipected to be recognized over the next
three years. The
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SUMMER INFANT, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIRES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

7. STOCK OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED SHARES (Continued)

Company did not grant any restricted stock awarits o 2009. See Subsequent Event footnote foitiaddl information on restricted stock
grants which occurred after December 31, 2010.

The Company is authorized to issue up @ @000 stock options and restricted shares uh@e2@06 Plan. As of December 31, 2010,
there are 474,900 shares available to grant uhée2@06 Plan.

8. WARRANTS

The Company had 3,633,953 redeemable constoak purchase warrants (the "Warrants") outstapdi December 31, 2008. Each
Warrant entitled the holder to purchase one shiacermmon stock at an exercise price of $5.00 pareslirhe Warrants expired in April 2009,
and there are currently no warrants outstanding.

9. CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
The Company leases certain equipment uecelgtal leases which expire over the next sevezalsg,
The leases require monthly payments ofggad and interest, imputed at interest rates rangiom 3% to 19% per annum.

The capital lease liability balance of appmately $844 and $509 is included in debt ondbesolidated balance sheets as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, (of which approxim&#885 is included in long-term debt each year, thedalance is in current portion of
long-term debt). The minimum future lease paymentduding principal and interest, are approximatk2,972 and $562, respectively.

Future Minimum Lease Payments

2015

Total 2011 2012 2013 2014 _&Beyond

Capital Lease Paymer 2,972 89¢€ 724 474 39C 48¢
Interest (2,277 (387 (30%) (23%) (16%) (81)
Principal 1,79¢ 50¢ 41¢ 23¢ 22t 407

10. PROFIT SHARING PLAN

Summer Infant (USA), Inc maintains a defim@ntribution salary deferral plan (the Plan) urBection 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code. All employees who meet the Plan's eligibilgguirements can participate. Employees may &detiake contributions up to 25% of their
compensation. In 2007, the Company adopted a nmagtghan which was funded throughout the year. Reryears ended December 31, 2010
and 2009, the Company recorded 401(k) matchingresgpef $200 and $163, respectively.

11. MAJOR CUSTOMERS

Sales to one customer comprised approxign&aieso of sales for the years ended December 310 20d December 31, 2009. Amounts
due from the one customer in 2010 and 2009 conmpapproximately 46% and 50% of trade receivablédeaember 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Royalty Commitmen

Summer Infant (USA), Inc has entered iradaus license agreements with third parties ferube of product designs and trade names for
the products manufactured by the Company. Thesseagnts have termination dates through August,. 2Ragalty expense under these
licensing agreements for the years ended Decenih@030 and 2009 were approximately $2,139 and $@bEpectively.

Customer Agreements

The Company enters into annual agreemeititsits customers in the normal course of busin€kese agreements define the terms of
product sales including in some instances cooperativertising costs and product return privile@esdefective products only) or defective
allowances (which are based upon historical expe€e These contracts are generally annual in @aod obligate the Company only as to
products actually sold to the customer.

License Agreements and Lease Commitrr

For lease agreements with escalation ctatlmeCompany records the total rent to be pai@utic lease on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease, with the difference betweenettigense recognized and the cash paid recordedefsraed rent liability included in accounts
payable and accrued expenses on the balance shaatdunts to be recognized within twelve monttgsiarother liabilities for amounts to be
recognized after twelve months from the balancetstiate, in the consolidated balance sheets. lirasntives are recorded as deferred rent at
the beginning of the lease term and recognizedradwction of rent expense over the term of thedea

Summer USA leases an office under a foar ggreement which requires monthly payments ofeqmately $4 through July 2012.

SIE leases office space under a non-cableetgerating lease agreement. This lease isfiseayear term through April 2012, and
requires monthly payments of approximately $6.ddigon, SIE is required to pay its proportionaber® of property taxes.

Summer Infant Canada, Ltd. entered intwexyear lease for office and warehouse space umdeneancelable operating lease agreer
expiring March 2013. The Company is obligated at plthe lease to pay maintenance expenses agwploperty taxes and insurance costs
as defined in the agreement. Monthly paymentshierinitial year are approximately $13 and escalar the course of the lease term. Sum
Infant Canada Ltd. has the option to renew thisddar one additional period of five years undershme terms and conditions.

Summer Infant (USA) Inc. entered into an28nth lease in June of 2009 for office and wareb@smce under a non-cancelable operating
lease agreement. The Company is obligated to pagiceommon area maintenance charges includingange and utilities. Monthly
payments for the initial year are approximately $28@ escalate over the course of the lease term.

Summer Infant (USA) Inc. entered into an7@nth lease in September 2010 for warehouse spalr a non-cancelable operating lease
agreement. The Company is obligated to pay cec@immon area maintenance charges including insumteaitilities. The initial lease terrr
10 months of free
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

rent followed by 12 monthly payments approximateh¢ and escalate over the course of the lease term.

During December 2007, Summer (USA) entémeala three year lease for warehouse space undan-aancelable operating lease
agreement expiring in January 2011. Summer (USAblgated as part of the lease to pay maintenarpenses as well as property taxes and
insurance costs, as defined in the agreement. Mop#tyments for the initial year are approximat®h0, and escalate over the course of the
lease term. Summer (USA) has the option to renésMéhse for one additional period of three yearden the same general terms and
conditions. During November 2009, SIA entered mtiwvo year office lease which requires monthly pagta of $6 through October 2011. We
will let this lease expire as in 2011, the East<Ealstribution center will be consolidated inte West Coast distribution center.

Approximate future minimum rental paymedite under these leases are as follows(a):

Year Ending (In Thousands)

December 31, 201 $ 1,36¢
December 31, 201 1,167
December 31, 201 971
December 31, 201 2,57¢
Total $ 6,07¢

(@  Amounts exclude payments for Sales-Leaseback ttdoraas described in Note 5.

Rent expense (excluding taxes, fees argt atiarges) for the year ended December 31, 204 Q@00 totaled approximately $2,519 and
$1,629, respectively.

Employment Contrac!

In accordance with United Kingdom and EW,I&IE has employment contracts with all employé&@sonnection with these contracts,
SIE is required to fund the individual pension cimitions of certain employees at varying ratesnfiao to 10% of the employee’ s annual
salary, as part of their total compensation pack@bese pension contributions are expensed asr@tturhere are no termination benefit
provisions in these contracts.

Litigation

The Company is involved in various claimsl éegal actions arising in the ordinary courséudiness. Management is of the opinion that
the ultimate outcome of these matters would nottematerial adverse impact on the financial pwsitif the Company or the results of its
operations.

13. GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Company distributes branded durable ipabducts throughout the United States, CanadattaUnited Kingdom, and various other
parts of the world.
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13. GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (Continued)
The following is a table that presentsnegenue by geographic area:

December 31,

2010 2009
(In Thousands)

North America $ 180,66: $ 144,43:

All Other 13,82 9,04¢

$ 194,48¢ $ 153,48:

The following is a table that presentsltassets by geographic area:

2010 2009
(In Thousands)
North America $ 170,00: $ 141,22(
Europe 5,652 4,19¢
Asia 2,341 53¢

$ 177,99 $ 145,95

14. BUTTERFLY LIVING ACQUISITION

On July 17, 2009, the Company enteredamté\sset Purchase Agreement (the "Acquisition Agead") to acquire Butterfly Living, LLC
("Butterfly"), under which the Company acquiredte@r assets and liabilities of Butterfly, an inntiva manufacturer of infant cribs,
headquartered in Pennsylvania.

The Company accounted for the acquisitiothen new guidance effective January 1, 2009. Téwg guidance requires that all assets,
liabilities, contingent considerations, and conéingies of an acquired business be recorded atdhie at the acquisition date. In addition,
acquisition costs generally are expensed as indurre

Total purchase price recorded in conneatith the acquisition was approximately $4,100)uding approximately $3,600 representing
the estimated fair value of contingent earn-outsgeration to be paid quarterly through 2013 basethe achievement of certain financial
targets. The first payment was due in April 201ppfoximately $74 was paid in cash upon closing.

The estimated earn-out liability was cadtedl using a discount rate of 3.27% to discoun$th800 potential future liability to its present
value, then reduced for certain closing adjustmen$3,600. Management concluded that the full pitdéearn out should be recorded at the
time of acquisition (net of present value) basednupurrent sales generated by Butterfly producisedkas projections of future business. In
the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company recordgdia of $1,770 relating to a reduction in the eatigd fair value of the earn-out at
December 31, 2010, resulting primarily from a fasted decline in the earnings expected from spgmifiducts included in the earn-out. The
related earn-out was subsequently settled in Fep@@11 at an amount approximating the Decembe2@10 carrying value.
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14. BUTTERFLY LIVING ACQUISITION (Continued)

The following table summarizes the actiwfithe earn-out liability from the date of the aiition:

(In Thousands)
Initially recorded $ 3,56¢
Payments and adjustmel (74¥)
Reduction of liability 2,770
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 1,051

The Company funded the cash portion otdlted net purchase price from cash on hand. Tl stdck consideration of $461 was
deposited in escrow to secure the presing indemnification obligations of the formeutBerfly stockholders under the terms of the agreet

The following table summarizes the estirddter values of the assets acquired and liabiliissumed at the date of acquisition of Butt
by the Company based on analysis of the net tamgihdl intangible assets acquired:

(In Thousands)
Inventory $ 1,147
Other Intangible Asse 812
Goodwill 4,59¢
Accounts Payable and accrued liabilities assu (2,452)
Total purchase considerati $ 4,10¢

The goodwill arising from the acquisitioonsists largely of synergies and economies of sogdected from selling Butterfly products
through the Company's significant distribution chand to existing customers. The goodwill is expedd be fully deductible for tax purposes.

15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In February 2011 the Company announceduntery consumer safety alert and awareness reaaipaign aimed at educating consumers
of potential safety issues associated with elecwids in the nursery. As part of this campaige,@mpany provided a safe installation guide
and cord warning label to consumers free of charge.financial impact of this program was limitedsupplying the guides and the labels to
our retail customers, who performed the re-worthair own retail stores for an agreed upon fee. &oetail customers shipped the impacted
SKU's back to the Company for the re-work, andGoenpany also re-worked whatever product was invits inventory. For product that is
being returned by retailers, the Company is re-imgrihe product as it is received, and will be pitig it back to the retailers as quickly as
possible. The charge taken in the fourth quart@0d0 was approximately $300.

In February 2011, Company settled the earniability with Butterfly for cash and stock &ing approximately $1,051; refer to Butterfly
Living Acquisition Note 14.

In March 2011 the Board of Directors apgathe 2010 bonus plan payout of $1,044, whichistetsof the following: a) $210 in cash
bonuses; b) $834 in restricted stock grants, otwbi0% had an immediate vesting and 50% will vestrie year. The cash bonuses and the
vested portion of the restricted stock grants are @f SG&A expenses in the attached Statementpef&@ions. The non-vested portion of the
restricted stock grant will be expensed from M&6t1 to March 2012.
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Summer

%, the bast time of your life ,-*-

a
g —
M A — T T o

June 25, 2009

Private and Confidential

Jeff Hale
108 Highclere Lane
Cary, NC 27518

Dear Mr. Hale:

Further to our recent discussions in respect of yogployment with Summer Infant (USA), Inc. (“SunmmeSummer is please to
offer you a full time position as Chief Operatiddfficer to commence on July 13, 2009. This offelnéing extended in consideration of the
mutual covenants and agreement contained in ttiés levhich sets forth our mutual understanding agicbement regarding your employment

with Summer pursuant to the following terms andditons.

Position and Responsibilities:

Your employment with Summer will commence on Juy 2009. You shall perform those duties and respdities necessary or
incidental to perform the functions of Chief Opéas Officer. As Chief Operations Officer you wiéport directly to Jason Macari President/
CEO.

Salary:

You will receive an annual base salary of $275,000payable in bi-weekly (every two weeks) instahts of $10,576.92, subject to
applicable withholding and other lawful deductioWsur bonus will be 35%. You will receive a proedtguaranteed first year bonus.

Stock Options:

Initially you will receive 175,000 shares of stamtions. Effective January 2010 you will receiveaaltdlitional 25,000 options. The
options will have a two (2) year cliff and four (#@ar vesting, 50% after the first two (2) yea&/@after the third year and 25% after the fo
year.

Corporate Office, 1275 Park East Drive, WoonsocR&€02895 « phone: 401.671.6550ax: 401.671.6051« www.summerinfant.com




Performance Review and Benefits:

You will be eligible for annual reviews on or abgaiur anniversary date. You will also be eligibbe Summer’s standard employee
benefits subject to plan eligibility requiremeristmmer’s current benefits inclutiéedical benefits, Dental benefitsa401K plan and match
program, Short and Long-Term Disability (after 90 days) a Flexible Spending Account, a Tuition ReimbursemenProgram (if eligible) ,
generous Product Discountsind20 days of Paid Time Offper year, (includes vacation, sick and personatim

Governing Law/At Will Employment:

Your employment with Summer shall be governed ly iaterpreted in accordance with the laws of tretesSof Rhode Island. By
execution and delivery of this employment termelietyou irrevocably submit to and accept the exetugirisdiction of the courts in the State
of Rhode Island and waive any objection (includamy objection to venue or any objection based upergrounds of forum non conveniens)
which might be asserted against the bringing ofsarch action, suit or other legal proceeding irhstaurts.

Your employment with Summer is “at will”, in thaitleer you or Summer have the right to terminateetmployment relationship at
any time, with or without cause. This status maly te altered by written agreement, which is speei$ to all materials terms and is signe«
an authorized officer of Summer. The terms of &mgployment letter do not, and are not, intendextéate either an express and/or implied
contract of employment with Summer for a definitteem.

Employment Documentation:

Your employment with Summer is contingent upon ysulsmission of satisfactory proof of your identtyd legal authorization to
work in the United States as well as completioalbémployment related forms required by Summeyoli fail to provide satisfactory
documentation, federal law prohibits Summer fronmigi you.

Expense Reimbursement:

Summer will pay and/or reimburse you for all expeneeasonably and necessarily incurred by youdmp#rformance of your services
while employed by Summer. Such payment shall beenugen presentation of such receipts or other deatetion, as the Company
customarily requires prior to making such paymemneanbursement.

Summer will reimburse you up to $125,000.00 foocation expenses for your move from North Caralm&hode Island. These
receipted expenses will include realtor’s sellings, moving costs, temporary housing, and trareamtback and forth.




Employment Manual:

During your employment with Summer you will be ré&qd to abide by Summer’s code of conduct, polieied procedures a set forth
in Summer’s employee manual or as otherwise comeatenl to you in writing.

Change of Control:

You will be required to sign a change of contralesgnent with a twelve month severance and non-ctangeiod.

Return of Employment Term Letter:

We are excited about this opportunity to work withu to build the Summer Brand and Business. Togdbés offer, please sign and
date page two, {if applicable sign Appendix A} kegopy for your records and return a copy to HuRRasources. We are extremely
confident that your employment with us will proveritmally beneficial and we look forward to havingujoin our winning team!

Very truly yours,
Summer Infant (USA), In
By: /sl Jason P. Maca

Name: Jason P. Maca
Title: CEO

| accept your offer of employment as set forthhiis employment term letter. | understand that mplegment is “at will” and that
either you or | can terminate my employment at timg, for any reason. No oral commitments have leade concerning my employment.

/sl Jeffrey L. Hale /sl Jeffrey L. Hale
Employee Name (please pril Employee Signatur
7/13/09

Date
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeesincRegistration Statement (No. 333-156725) omF8¢8, and Registration Statement
(No. 333-164241) on Form S-3/A of Summer Infant, lof our report dated March 22, 2011, relatinguo audit of the consolidated financial
statements, which is incorporated in this Annugbdteon Form 10-K of Summer Infant, Inc. for theayended December 31, 2010.

/s McGladrey & Pullen, LLF

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP
Boston, MA
March 22, 201:
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Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

As independent registered public accoustamé hereby consent to the incorporation of oporedated March 10, 2010, relating to the
consolidated financial statements of Summer Infarat, and Subsidiaries as of and for the year efxsmEmber 31, 2009, included in this

Form 10-K, into the Company's previously filed Retgition Statements on Form S-8 (No. 333-15672&) fin January 15, 2009 and Form S-
3/A (No. 333-164241) filed February 2, 2010.

/s/ Caturano & Company, Inc.

Caturano & Company, Inc.

(formerly Caturano & Company, P.C.)
Boston, Massachusetts

March 22, 201:
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Jason Macari, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual RepartFmrm 10-K of Summer Infant, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsinot contain any untrue statement of a matigalor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistanmces under which statements were made, notadistgwith respect to the period covered
by this report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldiéh this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report.

4. The registrant's other certifyinfadr and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaaing disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controlsmodedures, or caused such disclosure controlpreuogdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control ovearficial reporting, or caused, such internal cdrtver financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeittierally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of #gistrant's disclosure controls and procedurepeggkbnted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changéhe registrant's internal control over financegorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that haernadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the internal control over
financial reporting.

5. The registrant's other certifyindiagr and | have disclosed, based on our most temeriuation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataamimittee of the board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and nm@éweaknesses in the design or operation of iiatecontrol over financial reporting whi
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information, and;

b) Any fraud, whether or not materidkt involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

March 22, 2011 /sl JASON MACARI

Jason Macat
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Joseph Driscoll, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual RepartFmrm 10-K of Summer Infant, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsinot contain any untrue statement of a matigalor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistanmces under which statements were made, notadistgwith respect to the period covered
by this report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineldiéh this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdth@ periods presented in this report.

4. The registrant's other certifyinfadr and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaaing disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controlsmodedures, or caused such disclosure controlpreoogdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duritg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control owearficial reporting, or caused, such internal cdrtver financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assereegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of #gistrant's disclosure controls and procedurepaggkbnted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any changéhe registrant's internal control over financegorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that haenadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the internal control over
financial reporting.

5. The registrant's other certifyindiagr and | have disclosed, based on our most temeriuation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataamimittee of the board of directors:

a) All significant deficiencies and nm@éweaknesses in the design or operation of iiatecontrol over financial reporting whi
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information, and;

b) Any fraud, whether or not materidkt involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

March 22, 2011 /s/ JOSEPH DRISCOLL

Joseph Driscol
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Exhibit 32.1
SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report oniRdk0-K of Summer Infant, Inc. (the "Company") foetyear ended December 31, 2010 (the
"Report"), as filed with the Securities and Exchex@pmmission on the date hereof, |, Jason Macaief&xecutive Officer of the Company,
certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as sstbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxt#yA2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with treguirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&egrExchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a)
or 780(d)); and

2. The information contained in the Betfairly presents, in all material respects, financial condition and results of operations @& th
Company.

March 22, 2011 /sl JASON MACARI

Jason Macari
Chief Executive Office




QuickLinks
Exhibit 32.1

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 32.2
SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report oniRdk0-K of Summer Infant, Inc. (the "Company") foetyear ended December 31, 2010 (the
"Report"), as filed with the Securities and Exchex@pmmission on the date hereof, |, Joseph DrisCblief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as sstbpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxt#yA2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with trequirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&egrExchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a)
or 780(d)); and

2. The information contained in the Betfairly presents, in all material respects, financial condition and results of operations @& th
Company.

March 22, 2011 /sl JOSEPH DRISCOLL

Joseph Driscoll
Chief Financial Officel
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